Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 424B5

VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX
Form 424B5
April 08, 2002

THE INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT IS NOT COMPLETE AND MAY BE
CHANGED. THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT AND ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTUS ARE NOT AN OFFER
TO SELL THESE SECURITIES AND WE ARE NOT SOLICITING OFFERS TO BUY THESE
SECURITIES IN ANY STATE WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT Issued April 8, 2002 (Subject to Completion)
(To Prospectus dated April 5, 2002)
FILED PURSUANT TO RULE 424 (b (5)
REGISTRATION NO. 333-84820

$

(VALERO ENERGY LOGO)
$ % NOTES DUE
$ % NOTES DUE
$ % NOTES DUE

WE MAY REDEEM ANY OR ALL OF THE NOTES, NOTES OR NOTES AT ANY
TIME AT THE REDEMPTION PRICE DESCRIBED HEREIN PLUS ACCRUED INTEREST.
INVESTING IN THE NOTES INVOLVES RISKS. SEE "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 4
OF THE ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTUS.

NOTES - PRICE % AND ACCRUED INTEREST, IF ANY

NOTES - PRICE % AND ACCRUED INTEREST, IF ANY

NOTES - PRICE % AND ACCRUED INTEREST, IF ANY

UNDERWRITING
PRICE TO DISCOUNTS AND PROCEEDS TO
PUBLIC COMMISSIONS COMPANY
Per L % % %
o o O $ $ S
Per L % % %
1o o O S $ S
Per L % % %
o o O S $ S

The Securities and Exchange Commission and state securities regulators have not
approved or disapproved these securities, or determined if this prospectus
supplement or the accompanying prospectus are truthful or complete. Any
representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The underwriters expect to deliver the notes to purchasers on April , 2002.

JOINT BOOK-RUNNING MANAGERS
MORGAN STANLEY JPMORGAN



Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 424B5

BANC OF AMERICA LLC
BANC ONE CAPITAL MARKETS, INC.
BARCLAYS CAPITAL
BNP PARIBAS
FLEET SECURITIES, INC.
MIZUHO INTERNATIONAL PLC
RBC CAPITAL MARKETS
THE ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND
SCOTIA CAPITAL
SUNTRUST ROBINSON HUMPHREY
TD SECURITIES
TOKYO-MITSUBISHI INTERNATIONAL PLC
April , 2002

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT PAGE
SUMMATLY « o e e v e e e e ae e e e e e e aneeeeeseeanns S-3
Use Of Proceeds. . v vttt eeennnnns S=7
Capitalization.......c.uoeiiiieinnnnn. S-8
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial
Statements. . ...ttt e S-10

Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations.......covuiiiieenennn. S-13
BUSINESS . ittt ettt e e S-27
Description of the Notes.............. S-39
Underwriting........uiiiiineennnnn. S—-43
Legal Matters.....oueeiiiiiiiinnnnneen. S—-44
4 1 = S-44
Index to Financial Statements......... F-1
PROSPECTUS PAGE
About this Prospectus..............c.... 3
About Valero Energy Corporation........ 3
Risk Factors. ...ttt innnnnnns 4
Cautionary Statement Concerning

Forward-Looking Statements........... 9
Use of Proceeds. . ..vuviiiiiiiiiiinnnnnens 11
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges..... 11
Description of Debt Securities......... 12
Description of Capital Stock........... 19
Description of Warrants................ 23
Plan of Distribution................... 23
Legal MatterS. ettt it it e eeeeennns 25
4 T 25
Where You Can Find More Information.... 25

Information We Incorporate by
Reference. ... ... iiniiieennnnn 25



Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 424B5

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated into
this document. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with information
that is different from that contained in this document. This document is not an
offer to sell securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy securities in any
state where the offer or sale is not permitted. The information contained in
this document is accurate only as of the date hereof, regardless of the time of
delivery of this document or of any sale of securities.
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SUMMARY

This summary contains basic information about us and our offering of the
notes. It does not contain all the information that is important to you. You
should read the following summary together with the more detailed information
and financial statements and notes to the financial statements contained
elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the
accompanying prospectus, as described under the heading "Information We
Incorporate by Reference." To fully understand this offering, you should read
all of these documents. As used in this prospectus supplement, the terms
"Valero" and "we" or "us" may, depending upon the context, refer to Valero
Energy Corporation, to one or more of its consolidated subsidiaries or to all of
them taken as a whole.

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION

Valero Energy Corporation is a Fortune 100 company based in San Antonio,
Texas with over 22,000 employees and total assets of almost $15 billion. One of
the top three U.S. refining companies in terms of refining capacity, Valero owns
and operates 11 refineries in the United States and one refinery in Canada with
a combined throughput capacity of about 1.9 million barrels per day (BPD).
Valero's refining network stretches from eastern Canada to the U.S. Gulf Coast
and West Coast. Valero produces premium, environmentally clean products, such as
reformulated gasoline, gasoline meeting the specifications of the California Air
Resources Board (CARB), CARB diesel fuel, low-sulfur diesel fuel and oxygenates.
Valero also produces a substantial slate of conventional gasoline, distillates,
jet fuel, asphalt and petrochemicals.

Valero is also a leading marketer of refined products. Valero markets
branded and unbranded refined products on a wholesale basis in 40 U.S. states
and Canada through an extensive bulk and rack marketing network. Valero also
markets refined products and convenience store merchandise through a network of
retail sites in the United States and Canada bearing the Diamond Shamrock (R),
Ultramar (R), Valero(R), Beacon(R) and Total (R) brand names.

Valero also has a logistics system that complements Valero's refining and
marketing assets in the U.S. Gulf Coast and Mid-Continent regions. Valero owns
about 73 percent of Valero L.P., a master limited partnership that owns and
operates crude o0il pipelines, refined product pipelines and refined product
terminals in Texas, Oklahoma, New Mexico and Colorado. Units of Valero L.P. are
listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "VLI."

Valero was incorporated in Delaware in 1981 under the name Valero Refining
and Marketing Company as a wholly owned subsidiary of a corporation then known
as Valero Energy Corporation, and referred to in this prospectus supplement as
0ld Valero. 0ld Valero was engaged in both the refining and marketing business
and the natural gas related services business. On July 31, 1997, 0ld Valero spun
off Valero to 0ld Valero's stockholders by distributing to them all of the
common stock of Valero. Immediately after this distribution, 0Old Valero, with
its remaining natural gas related services business, merged with a wholly owned
subsidiary of PG&E Corporation. The distribution of Valero to 0ld Valero's
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stockholders and the merger of 0ld Valero with the subsidiary of PG&E
Corporation are collectively referred to as the "Restructuring." Upon completion
of the Restructuring, Valero's name was changed from Valero Refining and
Marketing Company to Valero Energy Corporation and, its common stock was listed
for trading on the New York Stock Exchange.

Valero's principal executive offices are located at One Valero Place, San
Antonio, Texas, 78212, and its telephone number is (210) 370-2000. Its common
stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "VLO."

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Acquisition of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock Corporation. Effective December
31, 2001, Valero completed the acquisition of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock
Corporation (UDS), which is referred to in this prospectus supplement as the UDS
Acquisition. The consideration paid by Valero to UDS shareholders included
approximately $2.1 billion in cash and approximately 45.9 million shares of
Valero common stock. In connection with the acquisition, Valero assumed
approximately $2 billion of UDS debt.
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Prior to the acquisition, UDS was an independent refiner and retailer of
refined products and convenience store merchandise in the central, southwest and
northeast regions of the United States and eastern Canada. UDS owned and
operated seven refineries with a combined throughput capacity of approximately
850,000 BPD. UDS marketed refined products and a broad range of convenience
store merchandise through a network of approximately 4,500 convenience stores in
the United States and eastern Canada.

As a condition to approval of the UDS Acquisition, the U.S. Federal Trade
Commission (FTC) is requiring Valero to sell UDS's 168,000 BPD Golden Eagle
Refinery located in the San Francisco Bay Area, its related wholesale marketing
business and 70 associated Beacon- and Ultramar-branded retail sites in Northern
California (collectively, the Golden Eagle Business). In February 2002, Valero
entered into an agreement to sell the Golden Eagle Business to Tesoro Refining
and Marketing Company for approximately $1.13 billion, subject to closing
adjustments and certain indemnifications. The sale is expected to close in April
2002, subject to regulatory approval. The FTC has approved a trustee to manage
the operations of these assets pending their sale to Tesoro.

Acquisition of Huntway Refining Company. Effective June 1, 2001, Valero
completed its acquisition of Huntway Refining Company. Huntway owned and
operated two California refineries at Benicia and Wilmington that produce
asphalt for use in road construction and repair, primarily in California and
Nevada. The facilities also produce smaller amounts of gas o0il, naphtha and
kerosene. These facilities have been substantially integrated into Valero's
refinery systems at Benicia and Wilmington. The purchase price, net of cash
acquired, was approximately $76 million and included payment to Huntway's common
stockholders of $1.90 per share and amounts required to retire Huntway's
outstanding debt and satisfy payment obligations under outstanding stock
options.

Acquisition of El Paso Refinery and Related Product Logistics
Business. Effective June 1, 2001, Valero completed its acquisition of E1l Paso
Corporation's 115,000 BPD Corpus Christi, Texas refinery and related product
logistics business through capital lease agreements that have a term of 20 years
and require annual lease payments of $18.5 million for the first two years and
increased amounts thereafter. The agreements also give Valero an option to
purchase the facilities for approximately $294 million at the end of the second
year of the lease and for increasing amounts in each succeeding year through the
end of the lease term. As part of the acquisition, Valero also purchased
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inventories for approximately $109 million. The refinery, which is located near
Valero's existing Corpus Christi Refinery, is a complex refinery that processes
heavy, high-sulfur crude oil into conventional gasoline, diesel, jet fuel and
other light products and petrochemicals. The product logistics facilities
consist of three intrastate common carrier pipelines and related terminal
facilities that enable refined products to be shipped from Corpus Christi to
markets in Houston, San Antonio, Victoria and the Rio Grande Valley.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financial data for the five years
ended December 31, 2001. This information should be read in conjunction with
Valero's consolidated financial statements and related notes for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 included elsewhere in this prospectus
supplement. This selected financial data is derived from our consolidated
financial statements, which have been audited by Arthur Andersen LLP,
independent public accountants.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 (A) (B) 2000 (C) 1999 1998 (D) (E) 1997 (F
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR
RATIOS AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
Operating Revenues.........eueuuu.. $14,988,339 $14,671,087 $7,961,168 $5,539, 346 $5, 756,
Operating Income (LOSS) .veveennnn. $1,001,343 S 610,979 S 72,029 S (48,347) s 213,
Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations....oee e $ 563,553 S 339,120 $ 14,287 $ (47,291) S 111,
Loss From Discontinued Operations,
Net of Income Tax Benefit(g).... $ - S - S - S - S (15,
Net Income (LOSS) e vvveeeeeennnnn $ 563,553 S 339,120 S 14,287 $ (47,291) S 96,
Less: Preferred stock dividend
requirements and redemption
Premium. v v vttt i - - - - 4,
Net Income (Loss) Applicable to
Common StOCK. . v eeeeeeennnn $ 563,553 S 339,120 S 14,287 S (47,291) S 91,
FEarnings (Loss) Per Share of
Common Stock —-—-Assuming
Dilution:
Continuing operations........ S 8.83 S 5.60 S .25 S (.84) S 2
Discontinued operations...... - - - - (
Total. et i it e e e eeenn $ 8.83 $ 5.60 $ 25 $ (.84) S 1
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges(h) .. cvviii ... 7.3x 5.6x 1.3x ——
Total ASSELS. it eeeennnnneens $14,377,096 $ 4,307,704 $2,979,272 $2,725,664 $2,493,

Long-Term Debt (less current

portion) and Capital Lease

Obligations.....c..oeiiieenneennn. $2,805,247 $ 1,042,417 $ 785,472 $ 822,335 $ 430,
Company-Obligated Preferred

Securities of Subsidiary

6 T = $ 372,500 $ 172,500 $ - $ - $
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Stockholders' Equity.............. $4,202,563 $ 1,527,055 $1,084,769 $1,085,287 $1,158,

(a) Operating revenues, operating income, income from continuing operations, net
income, earnings per share and ratio of earnings to fixed charges exclude
amounts related to UDS, while total assets, long-term debt (less current
portion) and capital lease obligations, company-obligated preferred
securities of subsidiary trusts and stockholders' equity include amounts
related to UDS, which was acquired by Valero on December 31, 2001.

(b) Includes the operations of Huntway and the operations related to the El1 Paso
Corpus Christi refinery and related product logistics business beginning June
1, 2001.

(c) Includes the operations related to the Benicia Refinery and the related
distribution assets (Distribution Assets) beginning May 16, 2000 and the
operations related to the service stations included as part of the
acquisition from ExxonMobil (Service Stations) beginning June 16, 2000
(combined, the Benicia Acquisition).

(d) Includes the operations of the Paulsboro Refinery beginning September 17,
1998.

(e) The 1998 operating loss includes a $170.9 million write-down of inventories
to market value, which resulted in a $111.1 million reduction in net income,
or $1.98 per share.

(f) Includes the operations of the Texas City, Houston and Krotz Springs
refineries beginning May 1, 1997.

(g)Reflects the results of the natural gas related services business of 01ld
Valero for periods prior to the July 31, 1997 Restructuring, which resulted
in the creation of Valero.

(h) Computed by dividing earnings by fixed charges. For this purpose, earnings
consist of consolidated income from continuing operations before income taxes
and fixed charges (excluding capitalized interest), with certain other
adjustments. Fixed charges consist of total interest, whether expensed or
capitalized, including amortization of debt expense and premiums or discounts
related to outstanding indebtedness, one-third (the proportion deemed
representative of the interest factor) of rental expense and distributions on
preferred securities of a subsidiary trust which are deducted in the
determination of consolidated pre-tax income from continuing operations. For
the year ended December 31, 1998, earnings were insufficient to cover fixed
charges by $77.7 million. This deficiency was due primarily to the $170.9
million pre-tax charge to earnings to write down the carrying amount of
refinery inventories to market value described above in note (e). Excluding
the effect of the inventory write-down, the ratio of earnings to fixed
charges would have been 2.7x.

THE OFFERING

Notes Offered.......c. it ennnnns S in principal amount of % Notes due
$ in principal amount of % Notes due
$ in principal amount of % Notes due
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Maturity Date. ..ttt ittt et ettt eee e

Interest Payment Dates............ .

Ranking.....

Optional Redemption...........cuiuiiiieeeennn.

Covenants...

Use Of Proceeds . . v ittt iiii it eeeeeeneeeenns

Risk Factors

We estimate that the proceeds

April and October , beginning on October , 2
Interest will accrue from the issue date of the not

The notes are unsecured senior obligations of Valer
will rank pari passu with all other unsecured senio
indebtedness of Valero.

We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time
the redemption price described in the "Description
the Notes" section under the heading "Optional
Redemption, " plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

The indenture governing the notes contains covenant
that, with certain exceptions, limit our ability an
subsidiaries' ability to:

— incur debt secured by liens; and

- engage in sale/leaseback transactions.
For more details, see the section under the heading
"Description of Debt Securities —-- Restrictive Cove
nants in the Senior Indenture" in the accompanying
prospectus.

We will use the proceeds of the notes to reduce
outstanding indebtedness under our $1.5 billion bri
loan facility.

You should carefully consider all information set f
and incorporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement and, in particular, should carefully rea
section entitled "Risk Factors" in the accompanying
prospectus before purchasing any of the Notes.

USE OF PROCEEDS

commissions and estimated offering expenses)
will be approximately $ billion.

(after deducting underwriting discounts and

we will receive from this offering

The cash portion of the UDS Acquisition was funded with $1.5 billion in

borrowings under a bridge loan facility,

which currently bears interest at a

rate of LIBOR plus 1% and matures on December 13, 2002, and approximately $555
million in borrowings under revolving bank credit facilities, which also
currently bear interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 1%. See "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—--Liquidity and

Capital Resources"

for more information on these credit facilities.

We anticipate using the net proceeds of this offering to repay borrowings
under the bridge loan facility discussed above. Affiliates of each of the
underwriters are lenders under the bridge loan facility. Valero will pay a
portion of the proceeds of this offering to these affiliates of the underwriters
when Valero repays the bridge loan facility.

discussion.

See "Underwriting" for further
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization
consolidated subsidiaries) as of December 31,
adjusted to (i)

(which includes our
2001 on an historical basis and as
reflect borrowings in January 2002 under the bridge loan and

revolving bank credit facilities for the purpose of paying the cash
consideration to UDS shareholders in connection with the UDS Acquisition,
reflect this offering and the application of the net proceeds from this offering

as described under "Use of Proceeds" and (iii)

(ii)

give effect to the sale of the

Golden Eagle Business and the application of the proceeds to pay down debt and

repurchase common stock, as described under

Financial Statements."

prospectus supplement.

Short-term debt:
Short-term bank credit facility............ oo,
Bank bridge loan facility, $1.5 billion..............

Revolving bank credit facility, 364-day,

Total short-term debt............ ... ... ...,
Current portion of long-term debt.......... .. ... ...
Payable to UDS shareholders........ioi it iineneeeeennnnn
Long-term debt, less current portion...................
Notes offered hereby....... ittt eenennnns

Capital lease obligations......c.c.ii it iineneeeeennnnn

Company-obligated preferred securities of subsidiary
L B

Minority interest in consolidated partnership..........

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 300,000,000 shares
authorized; 108,198,992 shares issued..............
Additional paid-in capital.......iiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.
Retained earnings. ... ..ttt iit ittt eennenneneens
Accumulated other comprehensive income...............
Treasury stock, at cost; 4,001,683 shares; 12,892,548

shares as adjusted for the repurchase of shares with

proceeds from the sale of the Golden Eagle Business

"Unaudited Pro Forma Combined
This table should be read in conjunction with our
historical consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-2 of this

PRO F
AS ADJ

DECEMBER 31, 2001
PRO FORMA
HISTORICAL ADJUSTMENTS
(IN THOUSANDS)
$ 200,000 S -
— 1,500,000 (1)
( ) (2)
— 555,250 (1)
(555,250) (3)
200,000
305, 661 —
2,055,250 (2,055,250) (1)
2,517,398 (179,750) (3)
- (2)
287,849 —
372,500 —
115,608 —
1,082 —
3,468,550 —
864,421 -
18,126 —
(149, 616) (400, 000) (3)
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Total stockholders' equUity.....cuiiiiiiinnnenn.. 4,202,563 (400,000)

Total capitalization.......oiiiiii e ennnnneens $10,056,829 S

See notes on following page.

(1)

To reflect the payment in January 2002 of the cash consideration to UDS
shareholders in connection with the UDS Acquisition, recorded as a payable
as of December 31, 2001, using borrowings of $1.5 billion under the bridge
loan facility and approximately $555.3 million under the revolving bank
credit facilities. For purposes of the capitalization table, we are assuming
the $555.3 million was borrowed under the 364-day revolving bank credit
facility.

To reflect the anticipated use of the expected net proceeds of this offering
to repay borrowings under the $1.5 billion bridge loan facility.

Assuming that the issuance of notes pursuant to this offering, as described
in note 2 above, has already occurred, this transaction reflects the
anticipated use of the expected proceeds from the sale of the Golden Eagle
Business to repay $735 million of bank borrowings and repurchase $400
million of our common stock at an assumed price per share of $44.99
(approximately 8.9 million shares). During December 2001, approximately $100
million of our common stock was repurchased as part of our plan to
repurchase a total of $500 million of our common stock using anticipated
proceeds from the sale of the Golden Eagle Business.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On December 31, 2001, Valero completed the UDS Acquisition. As a condition

to regulatory approval of the UDS Acquisition, the FTC approved a consent decree
requiring Valero to divest the Golden Eagle Business. In February 2002, Valero
reached a definitive agreement to sell the Golden Eagle Business for
approximately $1.13 billion.

The following unaudited pro forma combined statement of income combines the

historical consolidated statements of income of Valero and UDS, giving effect to
the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting. The unaudited pro forma
combined statement of income assumes that:

- the UDS Acquisition was effected on January 1, 2001;

- Valero issued approximately 45.9 million shares of common stock and
paid approximately $2.1 billion of cash to UDS shareholders; and

- the proceeds from the sale of the Golden Eagle Business are used to
pay down approximately $635 million of debt and repurchase $500

million of Valero common stock (approximately 11.1 million shares).

The unaudited pro forma combined statement of income does not reflect

anticipated synergies or costs and charges that may result from the acquisition.
For purposes of this unaudited pro forma combined statement of income, the



Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 424B5

purchase price was allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on preliminary estimates of fair values, pending the completion of
an independent appraisal and other evaluations. The accounting policies of
Valero and UDS are substantially comparable. However, certain historical amounts
of UDS have been reclassified to conform the financial statement presentation of
the two companies.

This unaudited pro forma combined financial information should be read in
conjunction with the historical consolidated financial statements of Valero and
UDS included in this prospectus supplement beginning on page F-1. The pro forma
adjustments use estimates and assumptions based on currently available
information. Management believes that the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable, and that the significant effects of the acquisition are properly
reflected. However, this pro forma information is not intended to be indicative
of the historical results that would have been achieved had the companies always
been combined or the results of operations which may be achieved in the future.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(MILLIONS OF DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

VALERO
VALERO UDS PRO FORMA AND UDS
HISTORICAL HISTORICAL ADJUSTMENTS COMBINED
Operating revenUesS. ...ttt e eeeeeeeeeennnn $14,988.3 $16,860.0 $(2,020.6) (a) $26,681.2
(2,664.2) (b)
(482.3) (c)
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and operating expenses.... 13,684.1 15,211.3 (1,759.9) (a) 23,989.0
(2,664.2) (b)
(482.3) (c)
Selling and administrative expenses..... 165.2 415.0 (15.3) (a) 546.5
(18.4) (d)
Goodwill amortization................... - 20.0 (5.3) (a) -
(14.7) (e)
Depreciation expense. .......c.ueeeeeene... 137.7 232.8 (37.3) (a) 313.1
(20.1) (f)
Total costs and expenses........ 13,987.0 15,879.1 (5,017.5) 24,848.6
Operating income (lOSS) cvvve it eeeeennnnn 1,001.3 980.9 (149.6) 1,832.6
Other income (expense), net............... (4.0) .5 (0.4) (a) (4.5)
Interest and debt expense:
I o G ol = (99.1) (110.9) (137.4) (9) (307.0
(3.0) (9)
42.5 (h)
.9 (h)
Capitalized. ..ottt ittt iiiieeen 10.6 4.8 - 15.4
Distributions on preferred securities of
subsidiary trusts........cciiiiiiiiin.. (13.3) (17.2) —— (30.5)
Minority interest in net income of
consolidated partnership................ —— (9.4) —— (9.4)

10
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Income (loss) before income taxes......... 894.9 848.7 (247.0) 1,496.6
Income tax expense (benefit).............. 331.3 313.7 (82.9) (a) 549.1
(13.0) (1)
Net 1ncome (10SS) v v v v ittt eteeeee e S 563.6 $ 535.0 $  (151.1) S 947.5
Earnings per share of common stock........ S 9.28 $ 7.22 S 9.92
Weighted average common shares
outstanding (in millions)............ 60.7 74.1 95.5 (3
Earnings per share of common
stock—-—-assuming dilution................ S 8.83 $ 7.08 S 9.47
Weighted average common equivalent
shares outstanding (in millions)..... 63.8 75.5 100.1 (]

See Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Statements.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(a) To exclude the results of operations related to the Golden Eagle Business
that are included in the UDS historical results, as the Golden Eagle Business
is assumed to have been sold as of January 1, 2001.

(b) To exclude excise taxes of $2,664.2 million (the amount remaining after
excluding the taxes eliminated as part of the Golden Eagle Business)
collected on behalf of governmental agencies associated with UDS' operations
from Operating Revenues and Cost of Sales to conform to Valero's accounting
policies.

(c)To eliminate intercompany sales of $482.3 million from Operating Revenues and
Cost of Sales.

(d) To eliminate certain UDS nonrecurring transaction costs of $18.4 million
directly attributable to the acquisition that were expensed by UDS.

(e) To reverse UDS' historical goodwill amortization.

(f) To record a $20.1 million decrease in UDS' depreciation expense based on the
preliminary purchase price allocation and estimated useful lives.

(g) To reflect interest expense of $137.4 million at a weighted average annual
interest rate of 6.6875% on borrowings of $2.1 billion required to fund the
UDS Acquisition and $3.0 million of amortization of related debt issuance
costs. A 1/8% change in the interest rate associated with these borrowings
would have a $2.6 million effect on interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

(h) To reflect a reduction in interest expense of $42.5 million and a $.9 million
reduction in amortization of related debt issuance costs resulting from the
assumed paydown of $635 million of debt with part of the proceeds from the
sale of the Golden Eagle Business. A 1/8% change in the interest rate
associated with this reduction in borrowings would have a $.8 million effect
on interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2001.

(i) To reflect the tax effect of the pro forma pre-tax income adjustments related

to the UDS Acquisition and adjust the effective tax rate to the rate that
would have been incurred by Valero with respect to the assets acquired.

11
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(j) The weighted average shares used to compute pro forma earnings per share
reflect the issuance of 45.9 million shares to effect the acquisition,
reduced by 11.1 million shares repurchased with part of the proceeds from the
disposition of the Golden Eagle Business.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following selected review of the results of operations and financial
condition of Valero is taken from "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Valero's Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2001. This selected review is not complete. For a more
complete review of the results of operations and financial condition of Valero
you should refer to "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" in Valero's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001, which is incorporated herein by reference. The following
selected review of the results of operations and financial condition of Valero
should be read in conjunction with "Business" and our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this prospectus supplement. All references to
Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Income and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements pertain to Valero's consolidated financial
statements and related notes for the year ended December 31, 2001 found on pages
F-2 through F-60. In the discussions that follow, all "per share" amounts assume
dilution.

ACQUISITION OF ULTRAMAR DIAMOND SHAMROCK CORPORATION

On December 31, 2001, Valero completed its acquisition of UDS (the UDS
Acquisition) after the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) approved a consent decree
on December 19 allowing the acquisition to be completed. In connection with the
UDS Acquisition, Valero issued approximately 45.9 million shares of common stock
and paid approximately $2.1 billion of cash to UDS shareholders. UDS was an
independent refiner and retailer of refined products and convenience store
merchandise in the central, southwest and northeast regions of the United States
and eastern Canada. UDS owned and operated seven refineries, including two in
Texas, two in California and one each in Oklahoma, Colorado, and Quebec, Canada,
with a combined throughput capacity of approximately 850,000 barrels per day.
UDS marketed refined products and a broad range of convenience store merchandise
through a network of approximately 4,500 convenience stores under the Diamond
Shamrock (R), Beacon(R), Ultramar (R), and Total (R) brand names in the United
States and eastern Canada. UDS's northeast retail operations also included the
marketing of refined products through 86 cardlocks, which are card- or
key-activated, self-service, unattended stations that allow commercial, trucking
and governmental fleets to buy gasoline and diesel fuel 24 hours a day, and a
retail home heating oil business that sells heating oil to approximately 250,000
households. As a condition for the regulatory approval of the acquisition, the
FTC's consent decree requires Valero to divest the 168,000 barrel-per-day Golden
Eagle Refinery located in the San Francisco Bay Area, the related wholesale
marketing business and 70 associated Beacon- and Ultramar-branded retail sites
located throughout Northern California (collectively, the Golden Eagle
Business). On February 4, 2002, Valero entered into a definitive agreement with
Tesoro Refining and Marketing Company (Tesoro), which was subsequently amended
on February 20, 2002, under which Tesoro will purchase the Golden Eagle Business
for approximately $1.13 billion, subject to closing adjustments and certain
indemnifications. The transaction is expected to close in April 2002, subject to
regulatory approval. See Notes 2, 3 and 27 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information about the acquisition and the assets
required to be divested and their expected sale to Tesoro.

12
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2001 COMPARED TO 2000

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE

AMOUNTS)

OpPerating TeVENUES . « v vttt ittt et e eeeeeeeeeeennnnnees $14,988,339 $14,671,087 $317,252
COSt Of SAlES .ttt ittt ittt ittt ittt tseeeeenannaes (12,738,607) (13,076,849) 338,242
Operating costs:

Cash (fixed and variable) ......oi it ienennn (852,155) (682,742) (169,413)

Depreciation and amortization..................... (222,411) (164,008) (58,403)
Selling and administrative expenses (including

related depreciation expense) .......ceeiiitnnnn. (173,823) (136,509) (37,314)

Total operating income...........ccuuunn.. 1,001, 343 610,979 390, 364

Other income (expense), Net ... . ii ittt eeneeeeenns (4,613) 282 (4,895)
Interest and debt expense, net........ ... (88,508) (76,245) (12,263)
Distributions on preferred securities of subsidiary

Lo T (13,369) (6,796) (6,573)
INCOME LAX EXPEINS .t v v v v vttt ee e ee et aeeeeeeseeaeenens (331,300) (189,100) (142,200)
Net dNCOME . ittt ittt et ettt ettt ettt et e eeeeennnn $ 563,553 S 339,120 $224,433
Earnings per share of common stock--assuming

T 1 00 N e o $ 8.83 $ 5.60 $ 3.23
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization (EBITDA) (€) « v v v v e eeeeeeeeennnneeens $1,235,005 S 785,744 $449,261
Ratio of EBITDA to interest incurred(e) ............. 11.0x 8.7x 2.3x

(a) Excludes amounts related to UDS which was acquired by Valero on December 31,
2001.

(b) Includes the operations of Huntway and the operations related to the El1 Paso
Corpus Christi refinery and related product logistics business beginning June
1, 2001.

(c) Includes the operations related to the Benicia Refinery and the related
distribution assets (Distribution Assets) beginning May 16, 2000 and the
operations related to the service stations included as part of the
acquisition from ExxonMobil (Service Stations) beginning June 16, 2000
(combined, the Benicia Acquisition).

(d) Percentage variance is greater than 100%.
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(e)For purposes of this calculation, distributions on preferred securities of
subsidiary trust are included in interest incurred.

S-14

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

CHANGE
2001 (A) (B) 2000 (C) AMOUNT %
Sales volumes (thousand barrels per day or MBPD)........ 1,355 1,142 213 19%
Throughput volumes (MBPD) . v v ittt it i ettt eeneeeeeneenns 1,001 857 144 17
Average throughput margin per barrel...........eeeennnn. $ 6.16 $ 5.08 $1.08 21
Operating costs per barrel:
Cash (fixed and variable) .....uii ittt eeeennnneens $ 2.31 $ 2.18 $ .13 6
Depreciation and amortization..............iiiiiioo.. .61 .52 .09 17
Total operating costs per barrel.............. $ 2.92 $ 2.70 $ .22 8
Charges:
Crude oils:
o 1 62% 55% 7% 13
Heavy SWeel . ittt ittt ettt et ettt e eeeeeeeeeennn 4 8 (4) (50)
I e o Y 7 8 (1) (13)
Total crude O1lS . i ittt iie ittt eeeeeeeeeenns 73 71 2 3
High-sulfur residual fuel oil (resid).............o... 4 4 —= —=
Low—sUlfur resid. ...« iiii ittt teeeeeeeeanns 4 3 1 33
Other feedstocks and blendstockS......oi i, 19 22 (3) (14)
Total charges. .« ittt ittt et e e eee e eaenn 100% 100% -—% -
Yields:
Gasolines and blendstocks. .. ...ttt eenn. 53% 53% -—% -
|0 = i A O = i = 27 28 (1) (4)
Petrochemicals. vttt it ittt et e ettt e eeeeeee e 3 3 - -
Lubes and asphalts. ...ttt ittt ittt eieee e 4 3 1 33
Other ProduCh S . ..ttt ittt et e e ettt et eeeeee e 13 13 - -
Total YieldsS . v u oo ittt eeeeeneeeeeeneeeennns 100% 100% -—% -

AVERAGE MARKET REFERENCE PRICES AND DIFFERENTIALS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(DOLLARS PER BARREL)

14
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Feedstocks (at U.S. Gulf Coast, except as noted):

West Texas Intermediate (WTI) crude o0i1l(d) ....vuvveenennnn. $25.93 $30.36 $(4.43)
WTI less sour crude 011 (€) (£) v iv it ittt ie ettt ee e ieeeeenn $ 5.01 $ 3.52 $1.49
WII less Alaska North Slope (ANS) crude oil (U.S. West
CoaSE) (A) vttt ettt ettt e ettt ettt et e e e $ 2.69 $ 2.04 $ .65
WTI less sweet crude 011 (g) () v e v e e e e e e ne et eeeeeeeennneens S (.23) S (.49) S .26
Products:
U.S. Gulf Coast:
Conventional 87 gasoline 1less WTI(A) .vevewemeeeeeennnnn $ 5.07 S 4.66 S .41
No. 2 fuel 011l 1€SS WTI(A) v vt v vt teme et eeeeenneennnn $ 3.01 $ 3.60 $(.59)
Propylene 1ess WTI(h) &ttt e in e i et eeeeeeennnnneens S (.83) S 4.88 $(5.71)
U.S. East Coast:
Conventional 87 gasoline 1less WTI(A) .veveweeeeeeeeennnn $ 5.05 $ 5.62 $(.57)
No. 2 fuel 01l 1€SS WTI(A) v vt v vt teme et eeeeeeneeennnn $ 3.83 $ 5.73 $(1.90)
Lube 011s 135S WTI () () v v v v v emmeeeeeeeeeenneneeenennens $26.83 $17.31 $9.52
U.S. West Coast:
CARB 87 gasoline 1ess ANS(d) v v vv ettt eeeennneaeeennnnens $16.04 $14.74 $1.30
Low—sulfur diesel 1ess ANS(A) v vttt ittt eeneennnn $ 9.05 $10.63 $(1.58)

See notes on following page.

(a) Excludes amounts related to UDS which was acquired by Valero on December 31,
2001.

(b) Includes the operations of Huntway and the operations related to the El1l Paso
Corpus Christi refinery and related product logistics business beginning June
1, 2001.

(c) Includes the operations related to the Benicia Refinery and the Distribution
Assets beginning May 16, 2000 and the operations related to the Service
Stations beginning June 16, 2000.

(d)Based on posted prices from Platts, the energy information and market
services unit of The McGraw-Hill Companies.

(e) The market reference differential for sour crude oil is based on posted
prices for 50% Arab medium and 50% Arab light crude oils from Petroleum
Argus, a global independent source of o0il and gas pricing information.

(f) The market reference differential for the 2000 period has been restated from
the amount reported in Valero's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2000 to conform to the components used in the 2001 period.

(g) The market reference differential for sweet crude oil is based on Platts
posted prices for 50% light Louisiana sweet (LLS) and 50% Cusiana crude oils,
with LLS adjusted for backwardation.

(h)Based on posted prices from Chemical Marketing Associates, Inc. (CMAI), a
consulting service for the worldwide petrochemical, plastics, fibers and
chlor—-alkali industries.

(i) Percentage variance is greater than 100%.

(j)Based on posted prices for ExxonMobil lube oils from ICIS-LOR, a pricing
information service for the petrochemical and oil markets.

(15) %
42

o\

32
53

(16)
-=(1)

(10)
(33)
55

(15)
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General. Valero reported net income of $563.6 million, or $8.83 per share,
for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to net income of $339.1 million,
or $5.60 per share, for the year ended December 31, 2000. For the fourth quarter
of 2001, Valero reported net income of $51.6 million, or $.82 per share,
compared to net income of $93.3 million, or $1.47 per share, for the fourth
quarter of 2000. The increase in total year results was due in part to the full
year contribution from the Benicia Acquisition which was completed in the second
quarter of 2000. Excluding the effect of the Benicia Acquisition, total year
results increased as a result of a substantial increase in throughput margins
due primarily to a significant improvement in sour crude oil discounts, higher
throughput volumes resulting largely from the acquisitions of the E1 Paso and
Huntway refineries in June 2001 and upgrades to the crude units at the Texas
City Refinery in February 2001, and an $8.8 million pre-tax, or $.09 per share
after-tax, benefit attributable to the acquisition of UDS inventories on
December 31, 2001 as discussed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. Partially offsetting the increase in throughput margins for Valero's
operations excluding Benicia were higher operating costs and selling and
administrative expenses, and an increase in income tax expense.

Results for the fourth quarter of 2001 declined from fourth quarter 2000
levels due primarily to a decrease in distillate and gasoline margins
attributable to exceptionally high margins experienced in the 2000 period and
higher industry-wide inventories in the 2001 period, and increases in operating
costs, depreciation expense and interest expense. Partially offsetting the
decrease in income resulting from these factors were higher throughput volumes
as described above, the processing of a larger percentage of sour crude oil, the
above-noted benefit attributable to the December 31, 2001 acquisition of UDS
inventories, and decreases in selling and administrative expenses and income tax
expense.

Operating Revenues. Operating revenues increased $317.3 million, or 2%, to
$15.0 billion during 2001 compared to 2000 due primarily to a 19% increase in
average daily sales volumes, offset to a large extent by a $4.81, or 14%,
decrease in the average sales price per barrel. The increase in average daily
sales volumes was due primarily to (i) the full year effect of volumes
attributable to the Benicia Acquisition, (ii) an increase in the sale of
feedstocks and products purchased for resale, and (iii) higher throughput
volumes resulting from the contribution of the El Paso and Huntway refineries
acquired in the second quarter of 2001 and capacity expansions at the Texas City
and other refineries during 2001. The decrease in average sales prices was due
primarily to lower refined product prices resulting from increased refined
product inventories industry-wide and a decrease in crude oil prices. The
increase in refined product inventory levels was attributable primarily to (i)
increased production and higher imports of gasoline which more than offset
improved demand, (ii) unusually low distillate inventories in 2000 and (iii) a
weakened economy following the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001.

Operating Income. Operating income increased $390.4 million, or 64%, to
$1.0 billion during 2001 compared to 2000 due in part to the above-noted full
year contribution from the Benicia Acquisition which

S-16

resulted in an increase in operating income of approximately $67 million.
Excluding the effect of the Benicia Acquisition, operating income increased due
to an approximate $472 million increase in total throughput margins (operating
revenues less cost of sales), partially offset by an approximate $122 million
increase in operating costs (including an $80 million increase in cash operating
costs and a $42 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense), and
an approximate $27 million increase in selling and administrative expenses
(including related depreciation expense).
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Total throughput margins, excluding the effect of the Benicia Acquisition,
increased due to (i) the effect of higher throughput volumes resulting from the
factors noted above in the discussion of operating revenues, including a
significant increase in the volume of Valero's sour crude oil charges during
2001 to take advantage of higher sour crude o0il discounts discussed below, (ii)
higher per barrel feedstock discounts, particularly for sour crude oil resulting
primarily from an increase in supplies of heavier crude oil while demand for
sweeter crude oil increased to meet lower sulfur requirements for certain
refined products, (iii) higher lube o0il margins resulting mainly from improved
market conditions, (iv) higher prices for No. 6 fuel oil and other heavy
products relative to crude oil prices, and (v) the pre-tax benefit attributable
to the December 31, 2001 acquisition of UDS inventories noted above under
"General." Partially offsetting the increases in total throughput margins
resulting from these factors were (i) lower distillate margins, when compared to
exceptionally high margins in 2000, due to strong demand and extremely low
industry inventory levels in 2000 resulting from cold weather and high natural
gas prices which caused power producers to switch to fuel oil to run their
plants, (ii) a significant decrease in margins for propylene and other
petrochemical feedstocks, to negative levels in 2001, due to slowing economic
activity throughout the world, and (iii) an increase in natural gas, hydrogen
and methanol feedstock costs relative to crude oil.

Cash operating costs were higher due primarily to the operations of the
Corpus Christi refinery and related product logistics business acquired from E1
Paso in 2001 and increases in employee salaries, benefits and variable
compensation, maintenance costs, and ad valorem taxes, partially offset by
reduced refinery energy costs. Depreciation and amortization expense was higher
due primarily to an increase in turnaround and catalyst amortization and
increased depreciation expense resulting from the 2001 acquisition of the E1
Paso facilities and capital expansion projects. Selling and administrative
expenses (including related depreciation expense) increased primarily as a
result of an increase in employee salaries, benefits and variable compensation,
and integration and early retirement costs incurred in 2001 in connection with
the UDS Acquisition. Partially offsetting these increases in selling and
administrative expenses was the nonrecurrence in 2001 of costs recorded in 2000
associated with certain litigation and other matters.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net, decreased $4.9
million, from income of $.3 million during 2000 to expense of $4.6 million
during 2001, due to reduced results from Valero's 20% equity interest in the
Javelina off-gas processing plant in Corpus Christi attributable primarily to
higher natural gas feedstock costs and lower product prices resulting from a
weak petrochemical market. Partially offsetting the reduced results from the
Javelina plant were lower costs related to the agreement entered into by Valero
in September 1999 to sell a portion of its accounts receivable.

Net Interest and Debt Expense. Net interest and debt expense increased
$12.3 million, or 16%, to $88.5 million in 2001 compared to 2000 due primarily
to a full year of interest in 2001 on borrowings incurred to fund the Benicia
Acquisition, including interest on the senior notes issued in June 2000, and
interest recognized in connection with the capital lease obligations associated
with the June 1, 2001 El1 Paso acquisition, partially offset by a decrease in
bank borrowings resulting from Valero's strong earnings and cash flow.

Distributions on Preferred Securities of Subsidiary Trust. Distributions
on preferred securities of subsidiary trust increased from $6.8 million in 2000
to $13.4 million in 2001 due to a full year of distributions on the PEPS Units
issued in June 2000 in connection with funding the Benicia Acquisition. See
Notes 2 and 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased from $189.1 million in
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2000 to $331.3 million in 2001 due primarily to the significant increase in
pre-tax income. See Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
S-17

2000 COMPARED TO 1999

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT
PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Operating FevVeNUES. . v vttt et eeennneeeennennn $ 14,671,087 $ 7,961,168 $ 6,709,919 84%
CoSt Of SAlES .t ittt ittt ettt it (13,076,849) (7,206,903) (5,869,9406) (81)
Operating costs:

Cash (fixed and variable) .......oeueeeeeenn.. (682,742) (473,787) (208, 955) (44)

Depreciation and amortization............... (164,008) (135, 764) (28,244) (21)
Selling and administrative expenses (including

related depreciation expense)............... (136,509) (72,685) (63,824) (88)

Total operating income.............. 610,979 72,029 538,950 —— (L

Other income, nNet.......ii ittt eneennnnn 282 3,587 (3,305) (92)
Interest and debt expense, net................ (76,245) (55,429) (20,816) (38)
Distributions on preferred securities of

subsidiary trust.......oii ittt (6,796) —— (6,796) —— (b
TNCOME LAX EXPENSEu v v v v vttt teeeee s e eaneeeeenns (189,100) (5,900) (183,200) —— (L
Net INCOME . ittt ittt et e ettt e e et eeeeeeeeeenn S 339,120 $ 14,287 S 324,833 - (b

Earnings per share of common stock--assuming

[ 5 0 IS & e o S 5.60 $ .25 $ 5.35 - (b
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation

and amortization (EBITDA) (C) « vt vt v v veennnenn S 785,744 S 216,769 S 568,975 —— (L
Ratio of EBITDA to interest incurred(c)....... 8.7x 3.5x 5.2x —— (b

(a) Includes the operations related to the Benicia Refinery and the Distribution
Assets beginning May 16, 2000 and the operations related to the Service
Stations beginning June 16, 2000.

(b) Percentage variance is greater than 100%.

(c)For purposes of this calculation, distributions on preferred securities of
subsidiary trust are included in interest incurred.
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OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

CHANGE
2000 (A) 1999 AMOUNT %
Sales VOlUMES (MBPD) v vt ittt ettt e ettt e e e et eeeeeeeeeeaeas 1,142 1,033 109 11%
Throughput volumes (MBPD) .o v i it iii ittt eeeeeeeeeeannns 857 (b) 712 145 20
Average throughput margin per barrel..........ceiieennn.. $ 5.08 $ 2.90 $2.18 75
Operating costs per barrel:
Cash (fixed and variable) ... ittt ittt neenneeeenns $ 2.18 $ 1.83 $ .35 19
Depreciation and amortization...........c.c.iiiiieeennn.. .52 .52 - -
Total operating costs per barrel............... $ 2.70 $ 2.35 $ .35 15
Charges:
Crude oils:
1S 1 55% 48% 7% 15
Heavy SWeel . ittt ettt et e e ettt et eeeee e 8 12 (4) (33)
Light sSWeet ..ottt ittt ettt e ettt ettt 8 9 (1) (11)
Total Ccrude O1lS . i i i ittt iie ittt teeeeeeeeannnn 71 69 2 3
High-sulfur resid....... ittt eeeeeeeeeeannns 4 3 1 33
Low—SULlfUr resid. .. vttt ittt ittt ettt et ettt teeeeennn 3 6 (3) (50)
Other feedstocks and blendstocks......... ... ... 22 22 - -
Total Charges. .ttt ittt e et e et e eaaenn 100% 100% -—% -
Yields:
Gasolines and blendstocks. . ...ttt 53% 51% 2% 4
|0 = i O =l = 28 29 (1) (3)
PetroChemicCals . v i n it ittt e et et et et et et e e e e 3 5 (2) (40)
Lubes and asphalts. ...ttt ittt e e ee e eeaann 3 3 - -
Other ProduUCh S . . vttt ittt et e ettt ettt eeee e 13 12 1 8
Total YieldsS . v v oottt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnnns 100% 100% -—% -
AVERAGE MARKET REFERENCE PRICES AND DIFFERENTIALS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
CHANGE
2000 1999 AMOUNT %
(DOLLARS PER BARREL)
Feedstocks (at U.S. Gulf Coast, except as noted):
WTT CruUde Odl (C) v vt ettt ettt ettt e e e e eeaeeeeeeeenennneens $30.36 $19.28 $11.08 57%
WTI less sour crude 011 (d) () v uv it ittt e e ieeeeenns $ 3.52 S 2.40 $1.12 47
WTI less ANS (U.S. West Coast) (C) (£) v uv i i it eennnnn $ 2.04 $ 1.55 S .49 32
WTI less sweet Ccrude 011l (g) v vt v v v i i e ettt teeeeennnnneens S (.49) S (.06) $(.43) —-—(h)
Products:
U.S. Gulf Coast:
Conventional 87 gasoline 1esSs WTI(C) e veveweneeeennnnn S 4.66 $ 2.53 $2.13 84
No. 2 fuel 011 1€SS WT I (C) e v vt v v ittt et eeeennennns $ 3.60 S .33 $3.27 ——(h)
Propylene 1€SsS WTI (L) v vt umetemeeeneeeneeeeeeenneenns S 4.88 $ .93 $3.95 ——(h)
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U.S. East Coast:

Conventional 87 gasoline 1ess WTI(C) e vvvvveneeeennnnn $ 5.62 S 3.47 $2.

No. 2 fuel 011 1€SS WT I (C) v v vttt ittt eeeeeeeeaeennns $ 5.73 $ 1.16 $4.

Lube 011s 1SS WTI(E) () v v v v v eeeeeeeeeeeeeenneeeennens $17.31 $12.51 $4.
U.S. West Coast (f):

CARB 1€SS ANS (C) vt vttt ettt e e eeeaeeeeseeeeneneeeennens $14.74 $12.13 $2.

Low—sulfur diesel 1SS ANS (C) v vttt tueeeeeeeeneennenn $10.63 $ 6.86 $3.

See notes on following page.

(a) Includes the operations related to the Benicia Refinery and the Distribution
Assets beginning May 16, 2000 and the operations related to the Service
Stations beginning June 16, 2000.

(b) Includes 106 MBPD for 2000 related to the Benicia Refinery.
(c)Based on Platts posted prices.

(d) The market reference differential for sour crude oil is based on Petroleum
Argus posted prices for 50% Arab Medium and 50% Arab light crude oils.

(e) The market reference differentials for the 2000 and 1999 periods have been
restated from the amounts reported in Valero's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000 to conform to the components used in the 2001 period.

(f) The market reference differentials for the U.S. West Coast are total year
differentials presented for informational purposes only. The comparison is
not relevant to Valero since the Benicia Acquisition did not occur until the
second quarter of 2000.

(g) The market reference differential for sweet crude oil is based on Platts
posted prices for 50% LLS and 50% Cusiana crude oils, with LLS adjusted for
backwardation.

(h)Percentage variance is greater than 100%.
(i)Based on CMAI posted prices.
(j)Based on ICIS-LOR posted prices for ExxonMobil lube oils.

General. Valero reported net income of $339.1 million, or $5.60 per share,
for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to net income of $14.3 million, or
$.25 per share, for the year ended December 31, 1999. For the fourth quarter of
2000, Valero reported net income of $93.3 million, or $1.47 per share, compared
to net income of $16.5 million, or $.29 per share, for the fourth quarter of
1999. The substantial increase in full year results was due primarily to
dramatically improved refining industry fundamentals which resulted in a
significant increase in throughput margins, and the contribution from the
Benicia Acquisition ($1.80 per share) completed in the second quarter of 2000.
Also contributing to higher full year results was the effect in the first
quarter of 1999 of a major maintenance turnaround of the heavy o0il cracker and
related units at the Corpus Christi Refinery, as well as certain unit expansions
implemented during that downtime, which both reduced results for 1999 and
increased results for 2000. Partially offsetting the increases in net income
resulting from these factors for Valero's operations excluding Benicia were
higher cash operating costs and selling and administrative expenses, an increase
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in income tax expense, the effect of certain scheduled and unscheduled refinery
downtime experienced primarily during the 2000 second quarter, and the
nonrecurrence in 2000 of benefits to income in 1999 related to reductions in
LIFO inventories.

Results for the fourth quarter of 2000 increased from fourth quarter 1999
levels due primarily to the significant contribution from the Benicia
Acquisition ($.71 per share) and substantially higher throughput margins for
Valero's operations excluding Benicia resulting from exceptionally strong
refining industry fundamentals and higher throughput volumes in the 2000
quarter. Partially offsetting the increase in throughput margins for Valero's
operations excluding Benicia were increases in cash operating costs, including
substantially higher natural gas costs, selling and administrative expenses, and
income tax expense.

Operating Revenues. Operating revenues increased $6.7 billion, or 84%, to
$14.7 billion during 2000 compared to 1999 due to a $13.88, or 66%, increase in
the average sales price per barrel and an 11% increase in average daily sales
volumes. The increase in average sales prices was due primarily to significantly
higher refined product prices resulting from reduced refined product inventories
industry-wide and an increase in crude oil prices. The decline in refined
product inventory levels was attributable primarily to (i) lower crude oil
supplies resulting from the continued impact of OPEC's decision in March 1999 to
significantly reduce crude oil production, (ii) lower refinery utilization rates
in late 1999 and early 2000, (iii) reduced refinery production due to more
stringent fuel specifications in the U.S. and Europe that became effective in
2000, and (iv) improved demand for distillates. Average daily sales volumes
increased due primarily to additional volumes attributable to the Benicia
Acquisition.

Operating Income. Operating income increased $539 million, from $72
million in 1999 to $611 million in 2000, due in part to the contribution from
the Benicia Acquisition noted above. Excluding the effect of the Benicia
Acquisition, operating income increased due to an approximate $471 million
increase in total
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throughput margins, partially offset by an approximate $99 million increase in
cash operating costs and an approximate $49 million increase in selling and
administrative expenses (including related depreciation expense).

Total throughput margins, excluding the effect of the Benicia Acquisition,
increased due to (i) significantly higher distillate margins resulting primarily
from strong demand and extremely low industry inventory levels, (ii) higher
gasoline margins resulting primarily from supply constraints and low industry
inventories, (iii) improved feedstock discounts for sour crude oil resulting
primarily from increases in sour crude oil production by OPEC and a shift in
demand from sour crude oil to sweet crude oil due to lower sulfur requirements
for certain refined products, (iv) higher RFG premiums and oxygenate margins due
to improved demand and the tightening of fuel specifications in the U.S. and
Europe noted above, (v) significantly higher lube o0il margins resulting mainly
from improved market conditions, (vi) higher petrochemical margins resulting
from improved worldwide demand, particularly in Asia, and (vii) higher
throughput volumes. The strong demand for distillate noted above was
attributable mainly to cold weather and high natural gas prices. These high
natural gas prices caused various power producers to switch to fuel oil to run
their plants, which also served to further reduce distillate inventories.
Partially offsetting the increases in total throughput margins resulting from
the above factors were (i) lower prices for No. 6 fuel o0il and other heavy
products relative to crude oil prices, (ii) an increase in sweet crude oil costs
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to amounts in excess of WTI, (iii) the effect of scheduled and unscheduled
refinery downtime experienced primarily during the 2000 second quarter, (iv) a
decrease in gains from trading activities and (v) the nonrecurrence in 2000 of
benefits resulting from the liquidation of LIFO inventories in the first and
fourth quarters of 1999 of $10.5 million and $9.3 million, respectively.

Cash operating costs were higher due primarily to higher fuel and
electricity costs attributable mainly to an increase in natural gas prices, an
increase in employee salaries, benefits and variable compensation, and higher
maintenance costs related primarily to certain unscheduled refinery downtime,
tank cleanings and lower than normal maintenance activities in 1999. Selling and
administrative expenses (including related depreciation expense) increased
primarily as a result of an increase in employee salaries, benefits, variable
compensation and other employee-related costs, and costs associated with
litigation and other matters.

Other Income, Net. Other income, net, decreased $3.3 million to $.3
million during 2000 compared to 1999 due primarily to increased costs in 2000
related to the agreement entered into by Valero in September 1999 to sell a
portion of its accounts receivable, partially offset by improved results of $2.6
million from Valero's 20% equity interest in the Javelina off-gas processing
plant in Corpus Christi. The increase in Javelina's results was attributable
primarily to significantly higher prices for natural gas liquids and increases
in prices for ethylene and other products, partially offset by significantly
higher natural gas feedstock costs.

Net Interest and Debt Expense. Net interest and debt expense increased
$20.8 million, or 38%, to $76.2 million during 2000 compared to 1999 due
primarily to increased borrowings to fund the Benicia Acquisition, including the
issuance of the senior notes in June 2000 and borrowings under Valero's bank
credit facilities (the effects of which are included in the $1.80 per share
contribution from the Benicia Acquisition noted above), partially offset by a
paydown of bank borrowings during 2000 resulting from Valero's strong earnings
and cash flow.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense increased from $5.9 million in 1999
to $189.1 million in 2000 due primarily to the significant increase in pre-tax
income. See Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

OUTLOOK
OVERVIEW

The economy continued to weaken throughout 2001 and the decline was
accelerated by the terrorist attacks on the U.S. on September 11, 2001.
Following September 11th, refined product demand declined, particularly for Jjet
fuel, and distillate and gasoline inventories started building. An unusually
mild winter, coupled with the weak economy, contributed to further weakening of
refined product demand, which resulted

in a further build-up of refined product inventories. To compensate for the
decreasing demand for crude oil, OPEC cut crude oil production, primarily sour
crudes, which has resulted in a significant narrowing of the sour crude discount
to WTI.

FIRST QUARTER 2002

Through February 2002, refining margins are 40 to 50 percent below refining
margins in the first quarter of 2001. Average gasoline margins remain well below
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the exceptionally high levels seen during the first quarter of 2001, due
primarily to above-average inventory levels, which resulted from high production
levels, increased imports and the blending of various petrochemicals into the
gasoline pool. For example, through February 2002, average Gulf Coast gasoline
margins relative to WTI were approximately $2.45 per barrel, compared to average
first quarter 2001 margins of $5.76 per barrel. Through February 2002, average
West Coast gasoline margins relative to ANS were also weak due to high inventory
levels resulting from West Coast refineries maintaining relatively high
production rates. The West Coast gasoline margin has averaged $9.70 per barrel
through February 2002, well below average first quarter 2001 margins of $19.47
per barrel. Average distillate margins through February 2002 are much lower than
those seen in the first quarter of 2001 as a result of the mild winter and weak
economy as discussed above, and reduced demand for jet fuel (which is causing an
increase in distillate inventories). For example, average Gulf Coast distillate
margins relative to WTI have declined to $1.36 per barrel thus far in 2002
compared to average first quarter 2001 margins of $3.47 per barrel. Average
margins for other products, including lube o0il and propylene, have also declined
thus far in 2002, primarily due to lower demand caused by the weak economy.

Retail fuel margins have also been under pressure in the first quarter of
2002 due to various factors, including significant discounting by major
retailers in an effort to capture market share and increased competition from
large discount marketers of gasoline.

With respect to feedstocks, the lower OPEC production of sour crude oils
discussed above has resulted in average discounts for sour crude oil narrowing
substantially in the first quarter of 2002 from the very strong first quarter
2001 levels. Sour crude oil discounts to WTI (defined as an average of Arab
Light and Arab Medium delivered to the U.S. Gulf Coast) averaged $2.28 per
barrel through February 2002 compared to $5.33 per barrel in the first quarter
2001.

Valero's refinery utilization rates for the first quarter of 2002 are
expected to be below historical levels due to heavy turnaround activity, wvarious
unscheduled downtimes, and economic-based run cuts as a result of poor margins.
Based on current plans, Valero's crude oil run cuts are expected to amount to
approximately 23% of total crude capacity for the first quarter, inclusive of
turnarounds. During the first quarter of 2002, Valero will have six of its 12
refineries involved in major turnaround activities at various times and for
varying durations. Most of the refinery units scheduled to be down during these
turnarounds are conversion units, which are the primary gasoline making units in
a refinery. The six refineries in turnaround include the Corpus Christi,
Benicia, Three Rivers, McKee, Ardmore and Krotz Springs refineries. In addition,
the Texas City Refinery will undergo a major turnaround in April 2002.

As a result of the poor product margins experienced thus far in 2002, the
substantial narrowing of sour crude discounts due to OPEC production cuts, and
significantly lower refinery utilization rates, Valero currently expects to
incur a slight loss in the first quarter of 2002.

REMAINDER OF 2002 AND BEYOND
Industry Fundamentals

For the remainder of 2002, Valero anticipates, based on projected supply
and demand fundamentals, that refining margins should strengthen. Refinery
utilization rates have remained low throughout the first quarter of 2002. In
addition to Valero's heavy turnaround activity and announced run cuts described
above, industry consultants have indicated that first quarter refinery
turnarounds will be heavy throughout the industry, and other refiners have also
announced significant levels of economic-based run cuts this quarter, especially
of crude units. Considering these lower refinery utilization rates coupled with
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lower OPEC crude oil production,

inventories should decline from first quarter 2002 levels. In addition, the
economy is showing signs of recovery, with commodity prices rising,
manufacturing activity increasing, and consumer confidence improving. As the
economy continues its recovery, the supply and demand balance should tighten
leading to lower refined product inventories, improved margins and positive
earnings going forward.

In the four weeks ending March 1, 2002, gasoline demand was 490,000 BPD or
approximately 6% higher than the same period last year, due primarily to
relatively low pump prices and more consumers opting to drive rather than fly.
Gasoline demand is expected to further strengthen as the summer driving season
approaches, given the effect of low pump prices on demand, many consumers opting
to drive rather than fly this summer and the impact of the recovering economy on
consumer sentiment. It is also encouraging to note that, despite the high
inventory levels, days supply of gasoline is currently the same as last year.
However, gasoline margins will likely continue under pressure until excess
inventories are reduced.

Distillate demand is down 4.7% through February 2002 compared to the first
two months of 2001 due to the mild winter and weak economy as described above.
As a result, distillate inventories are approximately 20 million barrels above
normal. Distillate margins will remain weak until inventories are reduced to
more normal levels. Reduced distillate production due to economic-based run cuts
by the industry, and an improving economy, should help reduce excess
inventories.

Valero believes that beyond 2002, refined product margins will improve due
to continued tightening fuel specifications and improving economic conditions
throughout the world. Refined product supply and demand balances are expected to
tighten in the U.S., Europe and Asia from the combined effect of increasing
demand, more stringent gasoline specifications, and refinery closures (resulting
from increased capital requirements to meet the increasingly stringent fuel
specifications). In fact, the impact of these fundamental changes to the
industry is already being seen in the U.S. by the closure last year of the
85,000 barrel-per-day Blue Island Refinery in the Midwest and the recent
announcement of the closure later this year of another Midwest refinery that
produces 70,000 barrels per day of refined products. The impact of refinery
closures and the volumetric impact caused by tighter fuel specifications should
more than offset refinery capacity additions and the limited amount of new
refinery construction that is underway around the world.

New product pipeline projects, including the Centennial pipeline that
connects the Gulf Coast to the Midwest and the Longhorn pipeline that connects
the Gulf Coast to El Paso, Texas, will change the dynamics of regional refined
product pricing in the U.S. The increased refined product supply capability will
tend to mitigate the upside volatility of refined product margins in the Midwest
and in the West Texas/New Mexico markets, and should also improve the Gulf Coast
margins as more refined products are delivered away from the Gulf Coast region.
Certain higher-cost, inefficient refiners in the Midwest and in the West
Texas/New Mexico markets may be forced to shut down if they cannot reduce their
costs to remain competitive.

Over the next several years, Valero expects the production of heavy sour
crude will exceed that of light sweet crude by an increasing amount, which
should result in widening discounts for Valero's purchases of sour crude oils.
As the world economy strengthens, demand for crude oil is expected to increase.
As OPEC increases its crude oil production levels to meet this demand, the
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incremental sour crude barrels that were taken off the market will be the first
barrels brought back to the market to meet increasing demand. Additionally, new
discoveries of sour and heavy reserves are rapidly coming to the market from
areas such as deepwater Gulf of Mexico, the former Soviet Union and Canada. In
some major regions such as the North Sea, light sweet crude production is
already declining. With demand for sweet and light crude oils continuing to be
strong due to the implementation in 2000 of lower sulfur requirements in
products and the increasing availability of sour crude oil versus sweet crude
0il, the price differential between sweet crude oil and sour crude oil should
increase. Beginning in 2004, the further tightening of fuel specifications will
also increase the demand for light, sweet crude, further contributing to wider
light sweet/heavy sour price differentials. Valero expects to recognize
significant benefits from its ability to meet current fuel specifications using
predominantly sour crude oil feedstocks as the supply of sour crude and the
demand for sweet crude continue to increase in the future. In addition, Valero
expects that an improving world economy would cause crude oil demand to improve
which would widen the sour crude discount, thereby significantly benefiting
Valero.

Capital Investments

During 2001, Valero added more than 900,000 barrels per day of throughput
capacity to its refining operations, acquired an extensive logistics business to
enhance its business operations and became one of the nation's largest
retailers, primarily through the UDS Acquisition on December 31, 2001.
Currently, Valero's primary focus is to capture the synergy opportunities that
the UDS Acquisition creates. Beyond 2002, Valero plans to implement projects to
increase the amount of heavy sour crude processed at the UDS refineries.

For 2002, Valero currently expects to incur approximately $1 billion for
capital investments, including approximately $840 million for capital
expenditures (approximately $165 million of which is for environmental projects)
and approximately $160 million for deferred turnaround and catalyst costs. The
capital expenditure estimate excludes approximately $100 million and $35
million, respectively, related to a delayed coker facility at the Texas City
Refinery and the planned expansion of the UDS headquarters facility for future
use as Valero's new corporate headquarters, which are being funded through
structured lease arrangements (see Notes 23 and 27 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements). The capital expenditure estimate also excludes
anticipated expenditures related to the earn-out contingency agreements
described in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The estimate
of deferred turnaround and catalyst costs includes the costs of major
maintenance turnarounds planned for the remainder of 2002 at the Corpus Christi,
Texas City and Paulsboro refineries, which are expected to enhance the
profitability of these refineries going forward.

As refining margins merit, Valero expects to continue making capital
investments at its refineries to enhance feedstock flexibility, meet low sulfur
gasoline and distillate requirements, meet other environmental requirements of
both the EPA and various state agencies, make improvements in throughput
capacity, and enhance the operational efficiency and mechanical reliability of
its operations. Typically, these capital improvements would be implemented
during scheduled maintenance turnarounds.

Valero also plans to continue its program of modernizing and upgrading its
convenience store network through its re-imaging program. Over the past several
years, UDS has re-imaged 130 sites. Valero plans to continue this program and is
currently evaluating the entire network of UDS convenience stores to determine
the appropriate branding, the number of sites and the timetable for upgrading
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the network.
Industry Consolidation

Significant industry consolidation through mergers and acquisitions has
occurred in the past and is continuing. Valero expects that industry
consolidations will continue, providing Valero with possible additional
opportunities to expand its operations. Geographically, that growth will most
likely come in the Northeast, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast regions. Valero is
well positioned to capitalize on further industry consolidation opportunities
and to benefit from these long-term industry trends.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $304.2 million to
$905.5 million during 2001 compared to 2000, due primarily to the significant
increase in net income discussed above under "Results of Operations," partially
offset by an increase in the amount of cash used to fund working capital. During
2001, approximately $1.1 billion of cash was generated from earnings,
approximately $181.1 million of which was used for other operating activities,
primarily working capital requirements. During 2001, there were significant
changes in individual components of working capital, as detailed in "Statements
of Cash Flows" in Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Accounts payable decreased $237.6 million and accounts receivable decreased
$122.1 million primarily due to a decline in various commodity prices from
December 2000 to December 2001, partially offset by an increase in volumes
purchased and sold. Accounts payable also declined due to Valero's redelivery to
the U.S. Strategic Petroleum Reserve in 2001 of approximately one million
barrels of crude oil in settlement of a time exchange of crude oil entered into
in 2000. During 2001, cash provided by operating activities, issuances of common
stock in connection with Valero's benefit plans, and proceeds from the
disposition of property, plant and equipment were utilized to (i) fund capital
expenditures, deferred turnaround and catalyst costs and the earn-out
contingency payments to Salomon Inc
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and ExxonMobil described in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements, (ii) fund the acquisition of Huntway and inventories related to the
acquisition of El Paso's Corpus Christi refinery and related product logistics
business, (iii) repurchase shares of Valero common stock, and (iv) pay common

stock dividends.

Valero's cash flows from operations are primarily affected by the
relationship, or margins, between refined product prices and the prices for
crude oil and other feedstocks. Historically, refining margins have been
volatile, and they are likely to continue to be volatile in the future. Based on
results thus far in 2002 and margin estimates for the remainder of the year,
operating cash flows for 2002 are expected to be significantly below 2001
levels.

As discussed in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the
$2.1 billion cash portion of the UDS Acquisition was financed with proceeds from
a $1.5 billion bridge loan facility and borrowings under two new $750 million
revolving bank credit facilities. The bridge loan facility, which is a
single-draw facility, has a one-year maturity. Proceeds from the required
disposition of the Golden Eagle Refinery and associated retail assets must be
used to pay down any amounts then outstanding under the bridge facility and
reduce commitments thereunder. The two revolving bank credit facilities provide
for commitments of $750 million for a five-year term and $750 million for a
364-day term, respectively, and replace Valero's previous $835 million revolving
bank credit and letter of credit facility. Borrowings under these facilities
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bear interest at either the London interbank offered rate (LIBOR) plus a margin,
a base rate or a money market rate. The interest rate and fees under these
credit facilities are subject to adjustment based upon the credit ratings
assigned to Valero's long-term debt. The credit facilities include certain
restrictive covenants including a coverage ratio and a debt-to-capitalization
ratio. As of December 31, 2001, borrowings under the two revolving credit
facilities were $525 million, while letters of credit outstanding were
approximately $145 million. Valero also currently has an uncommitted short-term
bank credit facility, along with various uncommitted bank letter of credit
facilities. As of December 31, 2001, $200 million was outstanding under the
short-term bank credit facility, and letters of credit totaling approximately
$92 million were outstanding under the uncommitted letter of credit facilities.

As of December 31, 2001, Valero's committed revolving credit facilities
also consisted of a Canadian facility under which a Canadian subsidiary may
borrow, issue bankers' acceptances and obtain letters of credit in an aggregate
amount of Cdn. $200 million, and a U.S. facility under which Valero L.P. may
borrow up to $120 million, both of which were assumed in the UDS Acquisition.
Valero must pay annual fees on the total used and unused portion of these
revolving credit facilities. The interest rate under these facilities floats
based upon the prime rate, LIBOR or other floating interest rates, at Valero's
option. As of December 31, 2001, there were no amounts outstanding under the
Canadian facility and $16 million was outstanding under the Valero L.P.
facility.

As of December 31, 2001, Valero had outstanding $150 million principal
amount of 6 3/4% notes, under which a third party has an option to purchase the
notes under certain circumstances at par on December 15, 2002. If the third
party does not exercise its purchase option, Valero would be required to
repurchase the notes at par on December 15, 2002. Valero currently expects that
the third party will exercise its purchase option, in which case the term of the
notes would be extended to December 15, 2032.

The following table presents Valero's commercial bank commitments and the
amount of commitment expiration per period as of December 31, 2001 (in
thousands). Valero had no guarantees or standby repurchase obligations as of
December 31, 2001.

AMOUNT OF COMMITMENT EXPIRATION

PER PERIOD

TOTAL ————
AMOUNTS LESS THAN
COMMERCIAL BANK COMMITMENTS COMMITTED 1 YEAR 1-3 YEARS 4-5 YEARS
Lines of credit.............. $3,449,845 $2,579,845 S - $870,000
Standby letters of credit.... 144,735 110,032 34,687 -

As discussed in Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
Valero, through a wholly owned subsidiary, has an agreement, which matures in
September 2002, with a third party financial institution to sell,
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on a revolving basis, up to $100 million of eligible trade accounts receivable.
Also, in connection with the UDS Acquisition, Valero assumed a $360 million

revolving accounts receivable sales facility, maturing in December 2002, whereby

Valero can sell, on an ongoing basis, eligible credit card and trade accounts

OVER 5
YEARS
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receivable through a wholly owned subsidiary to a third party financial
institution. Under these agreements, the subsidiaries sell an undivided
percentage ownership interest in the eligible receivables, without recourse, to
the third party financial institutions which maintain at all times a 3% equity
interest in their undivided interest in the receivables. Valero's retained
interest in these receivables is included in "Receivables, net" on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and is recorded at fair value. Valero remains
responsible for servicing the transferred receivables and pays certain fees
related to its sale of receivables under these programs. During 2001, 2000 and
1999, the costs incurred by Valero related to its pre-existing program, which
are included in "Other income (expense), net" in the Consolidated Statements of
Income and exclude costs related to the program assumed in the UDS Acquisition,
were $2.3 million, $6.8 million and $1.6 million, respectively. As of December
31, 2001, the amount of eligible receivables sold to the third party financial
institutions under these programs was $373 million.

Under common stock repurchase programs approved by Valero's Board of
Directors, Valero repurchases shares of its common stock from time to time for
use in connection with its employee benefit plans and other general corporate
purposes. During 2001, Valero repurchased shares of its common stock under these
programs at a cost of $156.7 million. Through February 2002, Valero has
repurchased additional common shares under these programs at a cost of
approximately $6.4 million.

Dividends on Valero's common stock are considered quarterly by Valero's
Board of Directors, are determined by the Board on the basis of earnings and
cash flows, and may be paid only when approved by the Board. Through the third
quarter of 2001, Valero declared a dividend of $.08 per common share for each
quarter since the July 1997 Restructuring. On October 18, 2001, Valero's Board
of Directors approved an increase in Valero's regular quarterly cash dividend on
common stock from $.08 per common share to $.10 per common share.

Valero believes it has sufficient funds from operations, and to the extent
necessary, from the public and private capital markets and bank markets, to fund
its ongoing operating requirements. During the first quarter of 2002, Valero
filed a $3.5 billion universal shelf registration statement with the SEC and
with this offering is issuing approximately $ billion of notes with varying
maturities. The proceeds are expected to be used to reduce borrowings under the
$1.5 billion bridge loan facility. Valero expects that, to the extent necessary,
it can raise additional funds from time to time through equity or other debt
financings. However, there can be no assurances regarding the availability of
any future financings or whether such financings can be made available on terms
acceptable to Valero.

Valero's refining and marketing operations have a concentration of
customers in the petroleum refining industry and petroleum products markets.
These concentrations of customers may impact Valero's overall exposure to credit
risk, either positively or negatively, in that these customers may be similarly
affected by changes in economic or other conditions. However, Valero believes
that its portfolio of accounts receivable is sufficiently diversified to the
extent necessary to minimize potential credit risk. Historically, Valero has not
had any significant problems collecting its accounts receivable.
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BUSINESS

The following selected review of the business of Valero is taken from
"Items 1. & 2. Business & Properties" in Valero's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001. This selected review is not complete. For a more complete
review of the business of Valero you should refer to "Items 1. & 2. Business &
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Properties" in Valero's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Valero Energy Corporation is a Fortune 100 company based in San Antonio,
Texas with over 22,000 employees and total assets of almost $15 billion. One of
the top three U.S. refining companies in terms of refining capacity, Valero owns
and operates 11 refineries in the United States and one refinery in Canada with
a combined throughput capacity of about 1.9 million barrels per day (BPD).
Valero's refining network stretches from eastern Canada to the U.S. Gulf Coast
and West Coast. Valero produces premium, environmentally clean products, such as
reformulated gasoline (RFG), gasoline meeting the specifications of the
California Air Resources Board (CARB), CARB diesel fuel, low-sulfur diesel fuel
and oxygenates. Valero also produces a substantial slate of conventional
gasoline, distillates, jet fuel, asphalt and petrochemicals.

Valero is also a leading marketer of refined products. Valero markets
branded and unbranded refined products on a wholesale basis in 40 U.S. states
and Canada through an extensive bulk and rack marketing network. Valero also
markets refined products and convenience store merchandise through a network of
retail sites in the United States and Canada bearing the Diamond Shamrock (R),
Ultramar (R), Valero(R), Beacon(R) and Total (R) brand names.

Valero also has a logistics system that complements Valero's refining and
marketing assets in the U.S. Gulf Coast and Mid-Continent regions. Valero owns
about 73 percent of Valero L.P., a master limited partnership that owns and
operates crude o0il pipelines, refined product pipelines and refined product
terminals in Texas, Oklahoma, New Mexico and Colorado. Units of Valero L.P. are
listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "VLI."

Valero was incorporated in Delaware in 1981 under the name Valero Refining
and Marketing Company as a wholly owned subsidiary of a corporation then known
as Valero Energy Corporation, and referred to in this prospectus supplement as
0ld Valero. 0ld Valero was engaged in both the refining and marketing business
and the natural gas related services business. On July 31, 1997, 0ld Valero spun
off Valero to 0ld Valero's stockholders by distributing to them all of the
common stock of Valero. Immediately after this distribution, 0Old Valero, with
its remaining natural gas related services business, merged with a wholly owned
subsidiary of PG&E Corporation. The distribution of Valero to 0ld Valero's
stockholders and the merger of 0ld Valero with the subsidiary of PG&E
Corporation are collectively referred to as the "Restructuring." Upon completion
of the Restructuring, Valero's name was changed from Valero Refining and
Marketing Company to Valero Energy Corporation and its common stock was listed
for trading on the New York Stock Exchange.

Valero's principal executive offices are located at One Valero Place, San
Antonio, Texas, 78212, and its telephone number is (210) 370-2000. Its common
stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "VLO."

All references to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements pertain to the
notes to Valero's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2001 found on pages F-8 through F-60 of this prospectus supplement.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Acquisition of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock Corporation. Effective December
31, 2001, Valero completed the merger of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock Corporation
(UDS) into Valero Energy Corporation, with Valero Energy Corporation as the
surviving corporation. We refer to this transaction as the UDS Acquisition.
Under the terms of the merger agreement dated May 6, 2001, each outstanding
share of UDS common stock, other than treasury shares (which were cancelled) and
shares in employee benefit plans (which were converted directly into Valero
common stock), was converted into the right to receive, at the shareholder's
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election but subject to proration, either (i) cash, (ii) a number of shares of
Valero common stock, or (iii) a combination of cash and Valero stock, in each
case having a value equal to the sum of $27.50
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and .614 shares of Valero common stock (valued at the average closing Valero
common stock price over a ten trading-day period ending three days prior to the
merger) . Merger consideration paid by Valero to UDS shareholders included
approximately $2.1 billion in cash and approximately 45.9 million shares of
Valero common stock (based on an average Valero stock price of $35.78 during the
measurement period).

UDS was an independent refiner and retailer of refined products and
convenience store merchandise in the central, southwest and northeast regions of
the United States and eastern Canada. UDS owned and operated seven refineries,
including two in Texas, two in California and one each in Oklahoma, Colorado and
Quebec, Canada, with a combined throughput capacity of approximately 850,000
BPD. UDS marketed refined products and a broad range of convenience store
merchandise through a network of approximately 4,500 convenience stores in the
United States and eastern Canada under the brand names Diamond Shamrock (R),
Beacon (R), Ultramar (R) and Total(R). UDS's Northeast operations also included a
retail home heating oil business.

As a condition to approval of the UDS Acquisition, the U.S. Federal Trade
Commission (FTC) is requiring Valero to sell UDS's 168,000 BPD Golden Eagle
Refinery located in the San Francisco Bay Area, its related wholesale marketing
business and 70 associated Beacon- and Ultramar-branded retail sites in Northern
California (collectively, the Golden Eagle Business). In February 2002, Valero
entered into an agreement to sell the Golden Eagle Business to Tesoro Refining
and Marketing Company (Tesoro) for approximately $1.13 billion, subject to
closing adjustments and certain indemnifications. The sale is expected to close
in April 2002, subject to regulatory approval. The FTC has approved a trustee to
manage the operations of these assets pending their sale to Tesoro. See Notes 2,
3 and 27 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Acquisition of Huntway Refining Company. Effective June 1, 2001, Valero
completed its acquisition of Huntway Refining Company. Huntway owned and
operated two California refineries at Benicia and Wilmington that produce
asphalt for use in road construction and repair, primarily in California and
Nevada. The facilities also produce smaller amounts of gas oil, naphtha and
kerosene. These facilities have been substantially integrated into Valero's
refinery systems at Benicia and Wilmington. The purchase price, net of cash
acquired, was approximately $76 million and included payment to Huntway's common
stockholders of $1.90 per share and amounts required to retire Huntway's
outstanding debt and satisfy payment obligations under outstanding stock
options.

Acquisition of E1l Paso Refinery and Related Product Logistics
Business. Effective June 1, 2001, Valero completed its acquisition of E1l Paso
Corporation's 115,000 BPD Corpus Christi, Texas refinery and related product
logistics business through capital lease agreements that have a term of 20 years
and require annual lease payments of $18.5 million for the first two years and
increased amounts thereafter. The agreements also give Valero an option to
purchase the facilities for approximately $294 million at the end of the second
year of the lease and for increasing amounts in each succeeding year through the
end of the lease term. As part of the acquisition, Valero also purchased
inventories for approximately $109 million. The refinery, which is located near
Valero's existing Corpus Christi Refinery, is a complex refinery that processes
heavy, high-sulfur crude oil into conventional gasoline, diesel, jet fuel and
other light products and petrochemicals. The product logistics facilities
consist of three intrastate common carrier pipelines and related terminal
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facilities that enable refined products to be shipped from Corpus Christi to
markets in Houston, San Antonio, Victoria and the Rio Grande Valley.

VALERO'S OPERATIONS

Valero's primary reportable business segments are refining and retail.
Valero's refining segment includes refinery, wholesale marketing, product supply
and distribution, and transportation operations. The refining segment is
segregated geographically into the Gulf Coast, Mid-Continent, West Coast and
Northeast regions. Valero's retail segment includes company-operated convenience
stores, Canadian dealers/jobbers, truckstop facilities, cardlock and home
heating oil operations. The retail segment is also segregated geographically.
Valero's retail operations in the northeastern United States and eastern Canada
are referred to as the

Northeast System, and Valero's remaining retail operations in the United States
are referred to as the US System. See Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional segment information.

REFINING, WHOLESALE MARKETING AND FEEDSTOCK SUPPLY
Refining

Valero's refining operations include 12 refineries with a combined total
throughput capacity of approximately 1.9 million BPD. The following table lists
the location of each of Valero's refineries and its respective feedstock
throughput capacity. The table excludes the Golden Eagle Refinery, which is
being sold.

THROUGHPUT
CAPACITY (a)
(BARRELS
REFINERY LOCATION PER DAY)
GULF COAST:
Corpus Christi..... ..., Texas 340,000
Texas Colty . w e it i ettt et iee et eeaeenns Texas 240,000
HOUSEOM . vt ittt e et e ettt et e e ettt ee e eeeeeeen Texas 135,000
Three RiVEeTrS ...ttt ittt teeeeeeneneens Texas 98,000
Krotz SpPringS. ..ot iie et eenneeennn Louisiana 85,000
898,000
WEST COAST:
BeNiCia. vttt ittt e e e e e e e e e California 180,000
Wilmington. ..o ettt ittt e et e e e e et eenn California 140,000
320,000
MID-CONTINENT:
MCK e vttt et ettt e ettt ettt ettt Texas 170,000
2Nt |1 o Oklahoma 85,000
DS 5 2 R Colorado 27,000
282,000
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NORTHEAST:
QU C . i ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e Quebec, Canada 205,000
PaulsbhoOrO. vttt ettt et e e e e e New Jersey 195,000
400,000
TOT ALt ¢ttt e e e et e e ee e eeeeeeeeenaeeesseeennnas 1,900,000

(a) Throughput capacity includes crude o0il, intermediates and other feedstocks.
Total crude oil capacity 1is approximately 1,526,000 BPD.

Gasolines represent approximately 52 percent of Valero's refined product
slate, and distillates--such as home heating oil, diesel and jet fuel--represent
approximately 30 percent; asphalt, lubricants, petrochemicals and other heavy
products comprise the remaining 18 percent. Of the gasoline that Valero
produces, about 45 percent is produced as reformulated gasoline and CARB
gasoline, which sell at a premium over conventional grades of gasoline. Over 75
percent of Valero's distillate slate is CARB diesel, low-sulfur diesel and jet
fuel, which sell for a premium over high-sulfur heating oil.
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Gulf Coast

Valero's Gulf Coast refining region includes the Corpus Christi Refinery,
the Texas City Refinery, the Houston Refinery, the Three Rivers Refinery and the
Krotz Springs Refinery. The following table shows representative percentages of
the principal feedstock charges and product yields for the five refineries in
this region for 2002.

COMBINED GULEF COAST REGION FEEDSTOCKS AND PRODUCTS
PROJECTED FOR 2002

PERCENTAGE

Feedstocks:

SOUY CrUA B v v v et e et e e et ettt eee e e aeeeeeesenaeeeeeeeenns 54 %

SWEEEL CrUAE . v vttt ittt ettt ettt e ettt aeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeneenns 22 %

residual fuel Odl. ...ttt ittt et ettt e e e 9 %

other feedstocks and blendstocks..........iiiiiiiiennn. 15 %
Products:

gasoline & blendstoCkS. ..ottt ittt 50 %

= il 30 %

Petrochemicals. vttt ittt et ettt et e eee et e 5 %

lubes and asphalt S ...t i ittt ettt ettt e 2 %

OLher ProdUCE S . & i ittt ittt e e et e e et e ettt et eeeeeeeeeenns 13 %

Corpus Christi Refinery. The Corpus Christi Refinery is located along the
Corpus Christi Ship Channel on the Texas Gulf Coast. The refinery is composed of
two plants, Valero's flagship West Plant and the recently acquired East Plant.
The West Plant is a highly complex refinery that specializes in processing
primarily lower-cost sour crude oil and residual fuel oil (resid) into premium
products such as RFG and CARB gasoline. Valero has substantially integrated the
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operations of the West Plant and the East Plant allowing for the transfer of
various feedstocks and blending components between the plants and the sharing of
resources. The refinery typically receives and delivers its feedstocks and
products by tanker and barge via deep-water docking facilities along the Corpus
Christi Ship Channel. In addition, the refinery has an eight-bay truck rack for
servicing local markets and uses the Colonial, Explorer and other major
pipelines—--including its own pipelines--for distribution of its products.

Texas City Refinery. The Texas City Refinery is located approximately 40
miles southeast of Houston on the Texas City Ship Channel. As a result of
improvements Valero made to this refinery since its acquisition in 1997, the
Texas City Refinery processes primarily lower-cost sour crudes into a wide slate
of products. A 45,000 BPD delayed coking unit and related facilities are being
constructed at the refinery which are expected to be operational in early 2004.
The refinery typically receives and delivers its feedstocks and products by
tanker and barge via deep-water docking facilities along the Texas City Ship
Channel and also has access to the Colonial, Explorer and TEPPCO pipelines for
distribution of its products.

Houston Refinery. The Houston Refinery is located on the Houston Ship
Channel. The refinery typically receives its feedstocks via tanker at deep-water
docking facilities along the Houston Ship Channel. The refinery primarily
delivers its products through major product pipelines, including the Colonial,
Explorer and TEPPCO pipelines.

Three Rivers Refinery. The Three Rivers Refinery is located in South Texas
near Corpus Christi. The Three Rivers Refinery has access to crude oil from
foreign sources delivered to the Texas Gulf Coast at Corpus Christi as well as
crude oil from domestic sources through third-party pipelines. The Three Rivers
Refinery and the Corpus Christi Refinery are connected by a 70-mile pipeline
that can deliver 120,000 BPD of crude oil. Valero distributes refined products
produced at this refinery primarily through pipelines owned by Valero L.P.
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Krotz Springs Refinery. The Krotz Springs Refinery is located
approximately halfway between Baton Rouge and Lafayette, Louisiana on the
Atchafalaya River. The refinery's location provides access to upriver markets on
the Mississippi River, and its docking facilities along the Atchafalaya River
are sufficiently deep to allow barge access. The facility also uses the Colonial
pipeline to transport products to markets in the Southeast and Northeast.

West Coast

Valero's West Coast refining region includes the Benicia Refinery and the
Wilmington Refinery. The following table shows representative percentages of the
principal feedstock charges and product yields for the two refineries in this
region for 2002.

COMBINED WEST COAST REGION FEEDSTOCKS AND PRODUCTS
PROJECTED FOR 2002

PERCENTAGE
Feedstocks:
SOUY CrUAB . v v vttt et e e e ettt teeee e e eaeeeeeesenneeeeeeeenns T7%
SWEEEL CrUAE . i i ittt it ettt et ettt e ettt aee e eeaeeeeaneenns 0%
residual fuel Odl. ...ttt ittt ettt e e e 0%
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other feedstocks and blendstocks....... ...t eennn.
Products:
gasoline & blendstocks
distillates
petrochemicals
lubes and asphalts

other products

Benicia Refinery. The Benicia Refinery is located northeast
Francisco on the Carquinez Straits of San Francisco Bay.
refinery that processes sour crude oils into a high percentage of
products, primarily CARB gasoline. The refinery can receive crude
deep-water dock that can berth large crude carriers and a 20-inch

connected to a southern California crude delivery system. Most of

of San

It is a highly complex

premium

supplies via a
crude pipeline
the refinery's

products are distributed via the Kinder Morgan pipeline in California.

Wilmington Refinery.

California. The refinery
crude oils. The refinery
refinery is connected by
facilities that can move
products are distributed

The Wilmington Refinery is located near Los Angeles,
processes a blend of lower-cost heavy and high-sulfur
can produce all of its gasoline as CARB gasoline. The
pipeline to marine terminals and associated dock
and store crude oil and other feedstocks. Refined
via a third-party pipeline and terminals in southern

California, Nevada and Arizona.

Mid-Continent

Valero's Mid-Continent refining region includes the McKee Refinery, the
Ardmore Refinery and the Denver Refinery. The following table shows
representative percentages of the principal feedstock charges and product yields

for the three refineries in this region for 2002.

COMBINED MID-CONTINENT REGION FEEDSTOCKS AND PRODUCTS
PROJECTED FOR 2002

PERCENTAGE
Feedstocks:
SOUY CrUAE . v v v vt ettt e e ettt ae e ee e e eaeeeeeesenneeeeeeeenns 20%
SWEEEL CrUE . v v ittt ittt e et ettt e ettt aeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeenns 75%
residual fuel Odl. ...ttt ittt et ettt e e e 0%
other feedstocks and blendstocks..........ii i eennn. 5%
Products:
gasoline & blendstoCkS. ...ttt it ettt 56%
[ = e 29%
Petrochemicals. « vttt it e et e e et e e e e e e 3%
lubes and asphalt S ...t i ittt ettt et ettt e 7%
5%

other products

McKee Refinery. The McKee Refinery is located in the Texas panhandle. The
McKee Refinery has access to crude o0il from Texas, Oklahoma, Kansas and Colorado
through crude o0il pipelines owned or leased by Valero and through third-party
pipelines. The refinery also has access at Wichita Falls, Texas to third-party
pipelines that transport crude oil from the Texas Gulf Coast and West Texas oil
fields to the Mid-Continent region. The refinery distributes its products via
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pipeline to markets in North Texas, New Mexico, Arizona, Colorado and Oklahoma.

Ardmore Refinery. The Ardmore Refinery is located in Ardmore, Oklahoma,
approximately 90 miles from Oklahoma City. Crude oil is delivered to the
refinery through Valero's crude oil gathering and trunkline systems, third-party
pipelines and trucking operations. Refined products are transported via
pipelines, rail cars and trucks.

Denver Refinery. The Denver Refinery is located outside Denver, Colorado.
Crude o0il for the refinery is supplied by a third-party pipeline and by truck.
The refinery benefits from a refined product pipeline that runs to and from the
McKee Refinery, which enhances flexibility in operations at both refineries.
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Northeast

Valero's Northeast refining region includes the Quebec Refinery in Quebec,
Canada and the Paulsboro Refinery in New Jersey. The following table shows
representative percentages of the principal feedstock charges and product yields
for the two refineries in this region for 2002.

COMBINED NORTHEAST REGION FEEDSTOCKS AND PRODUCTS
PROJECTED FOR 2002

PERCENTAGE

Feedstocks:

SOUY CrUAB v v v vt ettt e e ettt oo ee e e e aeeeeeesenaeeeeeeeenns 66%

SWEEEL CrUE . v vttt ittt ettt ettt e ettt aee e eeaeeeeeeeanns 27%

residual fuel Odl. ...ttt ittt et ettt e e e 0%

other feedstocks and blendstocks..........iiiiiiiieeennn. 7%
Products:

gasoline & blendstoCkS. ..ottt ittt ettt 41%

[ = ol 40%

Petrochemicals. vttt ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e 3%

lubes and asphalt S ...t i ittt ettt ettt 6%

OLher ProdUCE S . ¢ i ittt it it e ettt e e et et ettt eeeeeeeeeanns 10%

Quebec Refinery. Valero's Quebec Refinery is located in Quebec, Canada on
the St. Lawrence River. The refinery receives crude oil by ship at its
deep-water dock on the St. Lawrence River and can receive year-round shipments
of crude oil from large crude oil tankers. Valero charters large crude oil
tankers that can navigate the St. Lawrence River year-round. The refinery's
production is transported primarily by unit trains to markets in Montreal and
New Brunswick, and by tankers and trucks to markets in Canada's Atlantic
provinces.

Paulsboro Refinery. The Paulsboro Refinery is located in Paulsboro, New
Jersey approximately 15 miles south of Philadelphia on the Delaware River. The
refinery processes primarily sour crudes into a wide slate of products including
gasoline, distillates, a variety of lube o0il basestocks, asphalt and fuel oil.
Feedstocks and refined products are typically transported by tanker and barge
via refinery-owned dock facilities along the Delaware River, ExxonMobil's
product distribution system, an onsite truck rack and the Colonial pipeline,
which allows products to be sold into the New York Harbor market.
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Wholesale Marketing

Valero is a leading wholesale marketer of branded and unbranded refined
products. Valero markets on a wholesale basis in 40 U.S. states and Canada
primarily through an extensive bulk and rack marketing network. Valero markets
branded refined products under the Diamond Shamrock (R), Ultramar (R), Valero(R),
Beacon (R), Total (R) and Exxon(R) brand names.

Valero's bulk gasoline and distillate sales are made to various oil
companies and gasoline distributors and are transported by pipeline, barges and
tankers. The principal purchasers of Valero's transportation fuels from terminal
truck racks are wholesalers, distributors, retailers and end users (such as
railroads, airlines and utilities) throughout the United States. Most of
Valero's refineries have access to deep-water transportation facilities, and all
interconnect with common-carrier pipeline systems allowing Valero to sell
products in most major geographic regions of the United States and eastern
Canada.

Valero also enters into refined product exchange and purchase agreements.
These agreements enable Valero to minimize transportation costs, optimize
refinery utilization, balance refined product availability, broaden geographic
distribution and sell to markets not connected to Valero's refined product
pipeline system. Exchange agreements provide for the delivery of refined
products to unaffiliated companies at Valero's and
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third parties' terminals in exchange for delivery of a similar amount of refined
products to Valero by these unaffiliated companies at specified locations.
Purchase agreements involve Valero's purchase of refined products from third
parties with delivery occurring at specified locations. Most of these agreements
are long-standing arrangements. However, they generally can be terminated with
30 to 90 days notice. Valero does not anticipate an interruption in its ability
to exchange or purchase refined products in the near future.

Valero also sells a variety of other products produced at its refineries
including asphalt, lube base o0ils and commodity petrochemicals. These products
are transported via pipelines, barges, trucks and railcars. Valero produces and
markets approximately 57,000 BPD of asphalt to customers in the paving and
roofing industries. Valero is the second largest producer of asphalt in the
United States. Valero produces asphalt at eight refineries and markets asphalt
in 20 states from coast to coast through 11 company-owned or leased terminal
facilities.

Paraffinic lube base o0ils are produced at Valero's Paulsboro Refinery and
are sold to a variety of customers, including ExxonMobil under a long-term
agreement. ExxonMobil purchases approximately 50% of the refinery's production
with the balance sold to independent motor oil and industrial lubricant
customers.

Valero produces and markets a variety of commodity petrochemicals including
aromatic solvents (benzene, toluene, and xylene), refinery- and chemical-grade
propylene and anhydrous ammonia. Aromatic solvents and propylene are sold to
customers for further processing in the chemical industry for such products as
paints, plastics and adhesives. Ammonia, produced at Valero's McKee Refinery, 1is
sold to customers in the agriculture industry as fertilizer.

Approximately 10.6 percent of Valero's consolidated operating revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2001 were derived from ExxonMobil. Other than sales
to ExxonMobil, no single purchaser of Valero's products accounted for more than
10 percent of Valero's total operating revenues for 2001.
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Feedstock Supply

Valero processes a wide slate of feedstocks including sour crude oils,
intermediates and resid, which can typically be purchased at a discount to West
Texas Intermediate, a benchmark crude oil. Sour crude oils represent
approximately 50 percent of Valero's present feedstock slate, sweet crudes
represent about 30 percent, and the remaining 20 percent is composed of
intermediates, resid and blendstocks.

Approximately 1,160,000 BPD, or 76 percent, of Valero's crude feedstock
requirements are purchased through term contracts. The remainder of Valero's
feedstock requirements are generally purchased on the spot market. The term
agreements include contracts to purchase feedstocks from various foreign
national oil companies (including feedstocks originating in Saudi Arabia,
Mexico, Iraq, Venezuela and Africa) and domestic integrated oil companies at
market-related prices. Valero also uses the futures market to manage the price
risk inherent in purchasing crude oil in advance of its delivery date and in
maintaining Valero's inventories.

Valero's U.S. network of crude oil pipelines and terminals allows Valero to
acquire crude oil from producing leases, domestic crude oil trading centers and
ships delivering cargoes of foreign and domestic crude oil. The network also
allows Valero to transport crude supplies to many of its U.S. refineries at a
competitive cost (compared to facilities that lack proprietary supply networks).
Valero's Quebec Refinery relies on foreign crude oil that is delivered to its
St. Lawrence River dock facility by ship.

Valero's cost to acquire feedstocks, and the price for which Valero
ultimately can sell refined products, depend on a number of factors beyond
Valero's control, including regional and global supply and demand for crude oil,
gasoline, diesel and other feedstocks and refined products. These in turn are
dependent upon, among other things, the availability of imports, the production
levels of domestic and foreign suppliers, competitive fuels, U.S. relationships
with foreign governments, political affairs and the extent of governmental
regulation.

VALERO L.P.

Valero also has a logistics system that complements the company's refining
and marketing business in the U.S. Gulf Coast and Mid-Continent regions. Valero
owns approximately 73 percent of Valero L.P., a master limited partnership that
owns approximately 782 miles of crude oil pipelines, 2,845 miles of refined
product pipelines and 11 refined product terminals. Valero assumed its ownership
interest in Valero L.P. (formerly known as "Shamrock Logistics, L.P.") upon
completion of the UDS Acquisition. Valero L.P.'s revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2001, were approximately $98.8 million.

Valero L.P. transports the majority of all refined products from Valero's
McKee, Three Rivers and Ardmore refineries to markets in the Mid-Continent,
Southwest and Mexico border regions of the United States. In addition, Valero
L.P.'s pipelines supply these three refineries with crude oil feedstocks and
provide access to Texas, Gulf Coast and foreign crude oil sources.

RETAIL
Valero is one of the largest independent retailers of refined products in

the central and southwest United States, with strong brand identification in a
12-state retail area, including Texas, California, Colorado, Oklahoma, and in
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eastern Canada. Valero's US System sells gasoline and diesel fuel under the
brand names Diamond Shamrock (R), Valero(R), Beacon(R), Ultramar (R) and Total (R).
Valero has approximately 1,430 company-operated and five dealer-operated
convenience stores in its US System. Of the company-operated stores, about 770
are owned and 660 are leased. Company-operated stores are operated under a
variety of brand names including Corner Store(R), Ultramart (R) and Stop N Go(R).
For the year ended December 31, 2001, the total sales of refined products of UDS
and Valero through the US System's retail sites averaged approximately 164,000
BPD.

The company-operated convenience stores sell, in addition to gasoline and
diesel fuels, a wide variety of immediately consumable products such as snacks,
candy, beer, fast foods, cigarettes, fountain drinks and other beverages. Valero
has an ongoing program to modernize and upgrade the convenience stores it
operates. These efforts are focused primarily on improving the uniformity and
appearance of existing stores. Improvements generally include new exterior
signage, lighting and canopies, and interior store upgrades.

Valero's competitive retail position is supported by its proprietary credit
card program, which had approximately 691,000 active accounts as of December 31,
2001. Valero uses electronic point-of-sale (POS) credit card processing at
substantially all of its company- and dealer-operated stores. POS processing
reduces transaction time at the sales counter and lowers Valero's credit card
program costs.

In eastern Canada, Valero is a major supplier of refined products serving
Quebec, Ontario and the Atlantic provinces of Newfoundland, Nova Scotia, New
Brunswick and Prince Edward Island. For the year ended December 31, 2001, total
retail sales of refined products through the Northeast System averaged
approximately 72,800 BPD. Gasoline and diesel fuel are sold under the
Ultramar (R) brand through a network of 1,134 stores throughout eastern Canada.
As of December 31, 2001, UDS owned (or controlled under long-term leases) 529
stores and distributed gasoline to about 605 dealers and independent jobbers. In
addition, the Northeast System operates 86 cardlocks, which are card- or
key-activated, self-service, unattended stations that allow commercial, trucking
and governmental fleets to buy gasoline and diesel fuel 24 hours a day.

The Northeast System operations also include one of the largest home
heating o0il businesses in North America. In 2001, UDS sold home heating oil
under the Ultramar (R) brand to approximately 250,000 households in eastern
Canada and the northeastern United States.

COMPETITION

The refining and marketing industry continues to be highly competitive.
Valero's competitors include well-capitalized and fully integrated major oil
companies and other independent refining and marketing entities that operate in
all of Valero's market areas. Many of Valero's competitors are fully integrated
companies engaged on a national or international basis in many segments of the
petroleum business, including exploration, production, transportation, refining
and marketing, on scales much larger than Valero's. Such
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competitors may have greater flexibility in responding to or absorbing market
changes occurring in one or more of such segments. All of Valero's crude oil and
feedstock supplies are purchased from third-party sources, while some
competitors have proprietary sources of crude oil available for their own
refineries.

Financial returns in the refining and marketing industry depend largely on
refining margins and retail fuel margins, both of which fluctuate significantly.
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Refining margins are frequently impacted by sharp changes in crude oil costs
which are not immediately reflected in product prices. Historically, refining
margins have been volatile, and they are likely to continue to be volatile in
the future. The retail sector has become increasingly competitive. Valero faces
fierce competition from the fully integrated major oil companies that have
increased their efforts to capture retail market share in recent years. Valero
also competes with large grocery stores and other general merchandisers (the
so—-called "hypermarts") that often sell gasoline at aggressively competitive
prices in order to attract customers to their sites. Some specific factors that
may affect Valero's margins are discussed under "Risk Factors" in the
accompanying prospectus.

Most of Valero's refineries and supply and distribution networks are
strategically located in the markets Valero serves. For example, in Quebec,
Canada and in the adjacent Atlantic provinces, Valero is the largest independent
retailer of gasoline. The industry tends to be seasonal with increased demand
for gasoline during the summer driving season and, in the northeast regions,
increased demand for home heating o0il during the winter months.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The principal environmental risks associated with Valero's operations are
emissions into the air and releases into soil or groundwater. Valero's
operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws
and regulations, including those relating to the discharge of materials into the
environment, waste management, pollution prevention measures and characteristics
and compositions of gasoline and diesel fuels. Valero's operations are subject
to environmental regulation by several federal, state and local authorities. The
significant federal laws applicable to Valero's operations include the Clean Air
Act, the Clean Water Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act (CERCLA), and the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).

In February 2000, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) published
its "Tier II" gasoline standard pursuant to the Clean Air Act. The standard
requires the sulfur content in gasoline to be reduced from approximately 300
parts per million to 30 parts per million; the regulation will be phased in
between 2004 and 2006. In addition, the EPA's Tier II distillate standard
requires the sulfur content of diesel fuel sold to highway consumers to be
reduced from 500 parts per million to 15 parts per million, beginning in 2006.
(The American Petroleum Institute is challenging the EPA's distillate standard
in federal court.) Modifications will be required at each of Valero's refineries
as a result of the Tier II standards. Valero believes that capital expenditures,
not including costs for hydrogen facilities, of approximately $550 million will
be required for its refineries to meet the Tier II standards. (Valero expects to
refine this estimate throughout the phase-in of the Tier II standards.) Valero
began implementing the modifications in 2002 and expects modifications to be
complete in time for compliance with the effective dates of the gasoline and
distillate standards.

In 2000, the EPA issued to a majority of refiners operating in the United
States a series of information requests pursuant to Section 114 of the Clean Air
Act as part of an enforcement initiative. Valero received a Section 114
information request pertaining to all of its refineries owned at that time.
Valero completed its response to the request and has provided additional
clarification requested by the EPA. After Valero received its Section 114
information request, Valero acquired the Benicia Refinery and the Golden Eagle
Refinery, which were subject to Section 114 information requests received by the
prior owners of these refineries. Valero has not been named in any proceeding.
However, based in part upon announced settlements and evaluation of its relative
position, Valero expects to incur penalties and related expenses in connection
with its potential settlement of this enforcement initiative. Valero believes
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that any potential settlement penalties and expenses will be immaterial to its
financial position. Valero believes that any potential settlement with the EPA
in this matter will require various capital improvements, which could be
material in the aggregate, or changes in operating parameters or both at some or
all of its refineries.

The presence of MTBE in some water supplies in California and other states,
resulting from gasoline leaks primarily from underground and aboveground storage
tanks, has led to public concern that MTBE has contaminated drinking water
supplies and thus poses a possible health risk. As a result of heightened public
concern, California passed initiatives to ban the use of MTBE as a gasoline
component in California by the end of 2002. In March 2002, however, the governor
of California issued an executive order postponing the ban for one year.
Accordingly, the California Air Resources Board's specifications for CARB Phase
IIT gasoline are not expected to become effective until the beginning of 2004.
Valero estimates that the cost for permitting and modification of its California
refineries to comply with CARB Phase III specifications and eliminate MTBE as a
gasoline component is approximately $50 million. Valero, like other producers of
MTBE, is subject to litigation or proceedings involving the manufacture or use
of MTBE. In addition, other states and the EPA have either passed or proposed or
are considering proposals to restrict or ban the use of MTIBE. If MTBE were to be
restricted or banned throughout the United States, Valero believes that its
major non-California MTBE-producing facilities could be modified to produce
iso-octane for a capital investment of approximately $35 million.

The Houston/Galveston State Implementation Plan (SIP) was approved by the
EPA in October 2001. The SIP requires the Houston/Galveston area to reduce NOx
emissions by 75 percent from both stationary and mobile sources. The SIP will
require the area to demonstrate compliance with the Clean Air Act's ozone
standard by 2007. Valero's Texas City and Houston refineries are included within
the region affected by the SIP. To achieve compliance, Valero is required to
install advanced emission control technology at its Texas City and Houston
refineries by 2007, at a cost estimated by Valero to be approximately $50
million.

In 2001, Valero's capital expenditures attributable to compliance with
environmental regulations were approximately $34 million, and are currently
estimated to be $165 million for 2002 and $450 million for 2003. These estimates
for 2002 and 2003 do not include expenditures for the installation of a flue gas
scrubber at the Texas City Refinery (funded through a structured lease
arrangement), or any amounts related to constructed facilities for which the
portion of expenditures relating to compliance with environmental regulations is
not determinable.

Under various environmental laws, we may be liable, alone or with others,
for the release or threatened release of hazardous substances and petroleum or
its derivatives into the environment. The release of these materials can occur
at any of our facilities, including our refineries, pipelines, terminals or in
connection with the storage of fuel at our retail operations. We may be liable
for releases at facilities we own or lease that occur during or prior to our
ownership or operations, and we may also be liable for releases at other
facilities if our hazardous waste is transported to that site or if it migrates
from an owned or leased location. Based on current information we have reserved,
in the aggregate, $179.6 million for remediation liabilities. See Note 24 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Governmental regulations are complex, are subject to different

interpretations and are becoming increasingly more stringent. Development of new
facts or future regulatory initiatives could result in changes to expected
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operating permits, additional remedial actions or increased capital
expenditures, operating costs or clean-up liabilities that cannot be assessed
with certainty at this time. In addition, because certain air emissions at
Valero's refineries have been grandfathered under particular environmental laws,
any major upgrades at any of its refineries could require potentially material
additional expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations.

EMPLOYEES

As of January 31, 2002, Valero had 22,452 employees, including salaried and
hourly employees, of which 19,012 were employed in the United States and 3,440
were employed in Canada.

PROPERTIES

Valero's principal properties are described above under the caption
"Valero's Operations." In addition, Valero owns feedstock and refined product
storage facilities in various locations. Valero believes that its properties and
facilities are generally adequate for its operations and that its facilities are
maintained in a good state of repair. Valero is the lessee under a number of
cancelable and non-cancelable leases for certain
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properties, including the Corpus Christi Refinery East Plant and related product
logistics business which were acquired under capital lease agreements, the
Benicia Refinery dock facility, office facilities, retail facilities,
transportation equipment and various assets used to store, transport and produce
refinery feedstocks and/or refined products. See Note 23 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Valero's patents relating to its refining operations are not material to
Valero as a whole. The trademarks and tradenames under which Valero conducts its
retail and branded wholesale business--specifically Diamond Shamrock (R),
Ultramar (R), Valero(R), Beacon(R), Total(R), Exxon(R), Corner Store(R),
Ultramart (R), Stop N Go(R) and ValPar (TM)--and other trademarks employed in the
marketing of petroleum products are important to Valero's operations.

Valero currently has about 220 company-operated convenience stores and
supplies about 600 distributor-owned sites under a brand license agreement with
TotalFinakElf for use of the Total (R) brand name. The Total-branded sites are
located in Arkansas, Colorado, Iowa, Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, New
Mexico, Oklahoma, South Dakota and Texas. Per the license agreement with
TotalFinaElf, Valero's rights to use the Total (R) brand will expire in Colorado
in 2002, and in other states in subsequent years through 2007. Valero believes
that it can successfully convert, when necessary, from the Total (R) brand to
another of Valero's proprietary brands without adversely impacting Valero's
operations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES

The following description of the particular terms of the notes offered
hereby (referred to in the accompanying prospectus as the debt securities)
supplements, and to the extent inconsistent therewith replaces, the description
of the general terms and provisions of the debt securities set forth in the
accompanying prospectus, to which we refer you. The following summary of the
notes is qualified in its entirety by reference to the indenture referred to in
the accompanying prospectus.
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The % notes due (the notes) will constitute a separate
series of debt securities under the indenture, initially limited to $
million aggregate principal amount and will mature on , 20 . The %
notes due (the notes) will constitute a separate series of debt
securities under the indenture, initially limited to $ million aggregate
principal amount and will mature on , 20 . The % notes due
(the notes and, together with the notes and the notes, the notes)
will constitute a separate series of debt securities under the indenture,
initially limited to $ million aggregate principal amount and will mature on
, 20 . Valero will issue the notes in fully registered book-entry
form only, without coupons, in denominations of $1,000 and integral multiples
thereof. The indenture does not limit the aggregate principal amount of debt
securities that may be issued thereunder, including the issuance of further
notes that are consolidated and fungible with and form a single series with the
notes issued in this offering, and provides that debt securities may be issued
thereunder from time to time in one or more additional series. The indenture
does not limit Valero's ability to incur additional indebtedness.

Each note will bear interest at the respective rates per annum shown on the
cover page of this prospectus supplement from April , 2002 or from the most
recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for,
payvable semiannually on April and October of each year, commencing October

, 2002, to the persons in whose names such notes are registered at the close
of business on the date fifteen days prior to such interest payment date.
Interest on the notes will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting
of twelve 30-day months. If an interest payment date, redemption date or
maturity date of any note falls on a day that is not a business day, then
payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest will be made on the next
succeeding business day.

No interest will accrue on the amount so payable for the period from such
interest payment date, redemption date or maturity date, as the case may be, to
the date payment is made.

The notes will not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.

The notes will be our unsecured senior obligations that will rank on a
parity with all for our other unsecured senior indebtedness from time to time
outstanding.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

Each series of notes is redeemable, in whole or in part, at any time, and
at our option, at a redemption price equal to the greater of:

- 100% of the principal amount of the applicable series of notes then
outstanding, or

- the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of
principal and interest thereon (not including any portion of such
payments of interest accrued as of the redemption date) discounted to
the redemption date on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the adjusted treasury rate,

plus basis points with respect to the notes,
basis points with respect to the notes and basis
points with respect to the notes, as calculated by an

independent investment banker,

plus, in either of the above cases, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the
redemption date.
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"Adjusted treasury rate" means, with respect to any redemption date:

- the yield, under the heading which represents the average for the
immediately preceding week, appearing in the most recently published
statistical release designated "H.15(519)" or any successor
publication which is published weekly by the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System and which establishes yields on actively
traded United States Treasury securities adjusted to constant
maturity under the caption "Treasury Constant Maturities," for the
maturity corresponding to the comparable treasury issue (if no
maturity is within three months before or after the remaining life,
yields for the two published maturities most closely corresponding to
the comparable treasury issue shall be determined and the adjusted
treasury rate shall be interpolated or extrapolated from such yields
on a straight line basis, rounding to the nearest month); or

- if such release (or any successor release) is not published during
the week preceding the calculation date or does not contain such
yields, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield
to maturity of the comparable treasury issue, calculated using a
price for the comparable treasury issue (expressed as a percentage of
its principal amount) equal to the comparable treasury price for such
redemption date.

The adjusted treasury rate shall be calculated on the third business day
preceding the redemption date.

"Comparable treasury issue" means the United States Treasury security
selected by an independent investment banker as having a maturity comparable to
the remaining term of the notes to be redeemed that would be utilized, at the
time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in
pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the
remaining term of such notes (remaining life).

"Comparable treasury price" means, with respect to any redemption date, (1)
the average of five reference treasury dealer quotations for such redemption
date, after excluding the highest and lowest reference treasury dealer
quotations, or (2) if the independent investment banker obtains fewer than five
such reference treasury dealer quotations, the average of all such quotations.

"Independent investment banker" means one of the reference treasury dealers
appointed by us to act as the independent investment banker from time to time.

"Reference treasury dealer" means:

- Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.,
and their respective successors; provided that, if any of the
foregoing ceases to be a primary U.S. Government securities dealer in
New York City (a primary treasury dealer), we will substitute another
primary treasury dealer; and

- any other primary treasury dealer selected by us.

"Reference treasury dealer quotations" means, with respect to each
reference treasury dealer and any redemption date, the average, as determined by
the independent investment banker, of the bid and asked prices for the
comparable treasury issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its
principal amount) quoted in writing to the independent investment banker at 5:00
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p.m., New York City time, on the third business day preceding such redemption
date.

We will mail a notice of redemption at least 30 days but not more than 60
days before the redemption date to each holder of notes to be redeemed. If we
elect to partially redeem the notes, the trustee will select in a fair and
appropriate manner the notes to be redeemed.

Unless we default in payment of the redemption price, on and after the
redemption date, interest will cease to accrue on the notes or portions thereof
called for redemption.

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM, FORM AND DELIVERY

Each series of the notes will be represented by one or more global
securities registered in the name of Cede & Co., the nominee of the Depository
Trust Company, as "depositary," and the provisions set forth

S-40

under "Description of Debt Securities--Form, Exchange, Registration and
Transfer" in the accompanying prospectus will apply to the notes.

The depositary is a limited-purpose trust company organized under New York
banking law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of New York banking
law, a member of the United States Federal Reserve System, a "clearing
corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a
"clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The depositary holds securities
that its participants deposit with the depositary. The depositary also
facilitates the settlement among its participants of securities transactions,
such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic
computerized book-entry changes in participants' accounts, thereby eliminating
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct participants
include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and certain other organizations. The depositary is owned by a
number of its direct participants and by The New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the
American Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National Association of Securities
Dealers, Inc. Access to the depositary's system is also available to indirect
participants in the depositary such as securities brokers and dealers, banks and
trust companies that clear through, or maintain a custodial relationship with, a
direct participant, either directly or indirectly. The rules applicable to the
depositary and its participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

According to the depositary, the foregoing information with respect to the
depositary has been provided to the financial community for informational
purposes only and is not intended to serve as a representation, warranty or
contract modification of any kind.

Purchases of the notes under the depositary's system must be made by or
through direct participants, which will receive a credit for the notes on the
depositary's records. The beneficial ownership interest of each actual purchaser
of each note is in turn to be recorded on the direct and indirect participants'
respective records. Beneficial owners will not receive written confirmation from
the depositary of their purchase, but beneficial owners are expected to receive
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic
statements of their holdings, from the direct or indirect participant through
which the beneficial owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership
interest in the notes are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of
participants acting on behalf of beneficial owners. Beneficial owners will not
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receive certificates representing their ownership interest in notes except in
the event that use of the book-entry system for the notes is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all notes deposited with the depositary
by participants in the depositary will be registered in the name of the
depositary's nominee, Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by
an authorized representative of the depositary. The deposit of the notes with
the depositary and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other
nominee effect no change in beneficial ownership. The depositary has no
knowledge of the actual beneficial owners of the notes; the depositary's records
reflect only the identity of the direct participants to whose accounts such
notes are credited, which may or may not be the beneficial owners. The
participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on
behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by the depositary to direct
participants, by direct participants to indirect participants, and by direct
participants and indirect participants to beneficial owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as
may be in effect from time to time.

The laws of some states may require that certain persons take physical
delivery in definitive form of securities which they own. Consequently, those
persons may be prohibited from purchasing beneficial interest in the global
notes from any beneficial owner or otherwise.

So long as the depositary's nominee is the registered owner of the global
notes, such nominee for all purposes will be considered the sole owner or holder
of the notes under the indenture. Except as provided below, beneficial owners
will not be entitled to have any of the notes registered in their names, will
not receive

or be entitled to receive physical delivery of the notes in definitive form and
will not be considered the owners or holders thereof under the indenture.

Neither the depositary nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to
the notes. Under its usual procedures, the depositary mails an omnibus proxy to
Valero as soon as possible after the record date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede
& Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those direct participants to whose
accounts the notes are credited on the record date (identified in a listing
attached to the omnibus proxy) .

Payments of principal, interest and premium, if any, on the notes will be
made to Cede & Co. The depositary's practice is to credit direct participants'
accounts upon the depositary's receipt of funds and corresponding detail from
the trustee or Valero on the relevant payment date in accordance with their
respective holdings shown on the depositary's records. Payments by participants
to beneficial owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities for the accounts of customers in
bearer form or registered in "street-name," and will be the responsibility of
each participant and not of the depositary, the underwriters, or Valero, subject
to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time. Payment of principal, interest and premium, if any, to Cede & Co. is the
responsibility of Valero or the respective trustees. Disbursement of such
payments to direct participants is the responsibility of the depositary, and
disbursement of such payments to the beneficial owners of the notes is the
responsibility of direct and indirect participants in the depositary.

The depositary may discontinue providing its services as securities
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depository with respect to the notes at any time by giving reasonable notice to
us. Under such circumstances and in the event that a successor securities
depository is not obtained, certificates for the notes are required to be
printed and delivered. In addition, we may decide to discontinue use of the
system of book-entry transfers through the depositary (or a successor securities
depository). In that event, certificates will be printed and delivered.

We will not have any responsibility or obligation to participants in the
depositary or the persons for whom they act as nominees with respect to the
accuracy of the records of the depositary, its nominee or any direct or indirect
participant with respect to any ownership interest in the notes, or with respect
to payments to or providing of notice for the direct participants, the indirect
participants or the beneficial owners of the notes.

The information contained herein under the caption "Description of
Notes—--Book-Entry System, Form and Delivery" concerning the depositary and the
depositary's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that we believes
to be reliable. Neither Valero, the trustee nor the underwriters, dealers or
agents take responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof.

THE TRUSTEE
The trustee under the indenture is The Bank of New York, as trustee.
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UNDERWRITING

Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in an underwriting
agreement, dated the date of this prospectus supplement, the underwriters named
below have severally agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to them,
severally, the respective principal amount of the notes set forth opposite their
respective names below:

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
NAME OF NOTES OF NOTES

Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated....... S S
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. ............
Banc of America Securities LLC..........
Banc One Capital Markets, Inc...........
Barclays Capital InC....vee e eeennenn..
BNP Paribas Securities Corp.............
Fleet Securities, INC.....iuiiieeenenn.
Mizuho International plc................
RBC Dominion Securities Corporation.....
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc..........
Scotia Capital (USA) INC. e eeweeeeennnnns
SunTrust Capital Markets, Inc...........
TD Securities (USA) INC. v v v eennnnnnn
Tokyo-Mitsubishi International plc......

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several
underwriters to pay for and accept delivery of the notes is subject to, among

PRINCIPAL AM
OF NOTES
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other things, the approval of certain legal matters by their counsel and certain
other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to take and pay for all of the
notes if any are taken.

The underwriters initially propose to offer part of the notes directly to
the public at the public offering price set forth on the cover page hereof and
part to certain dealers at a price that represents a concession not in excess of

% of the principal amount in the case of the notes, % of the principal
amount in the case of the notes and % of the principal amount in the
case of the notes. Any underwriter may allow, and any such dealers may
reallow, a concession to certain other dealers not to exceed % of the
principal amount in the case of the notes, % of the principal amount in
the case of the notes and % of the principal amount in the case of
the notes. After the initial offering of the notes, the offering price

and other selling terms may from time to time be varied by the underwriters.

We have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain
liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make because of
any of those liabilities.

We do not intend to apply for listing of the notes on a national securities
exchange, but have been advised by the underwriters that they intend to make a
market in the notes. The underwriters are not obligated, however, to do so and
may discontinue their market making at any time without notice. No assurance can
be given as to the liquidity of the trading market for the notes.

In order to facilitate the offering of the notes, the underwriters may
engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the prices
of the notes. Specifically, the underwriters may overallot in connection with
the offering, creating a short position in the notes for their own account. In
addition, to cover overallotments or to stabilize the price of the notes, the
underwriters may bid for, and purchase, the notes in the open market. Finally,
the underwriters may reclaim selling concessions allowed to an underwriter or a
dealer for distributing the notes in the offering, if they repurchase previously
distributed notes in transactions

to cover syndicate short positions, in stabilization transactions or otherwise.

Any of these activities may stabilize or maintain the market price for the notes
above independent market levels. The underwriters are not required to engage in

these activities and may end any of these activities at any time.

We estimate that our total expenses for this offering will be $

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (JPMorgan) will make the securities available
for distribution on the Internet through a proprietary Web site and/or a
third-party system operated by Market Axess Inc., an Internet-based
communications technology provider. Market Axess Inc. is providing the system as
a conduit for communications between JPMorgan and its customers and is not a
party to any transactions. Market Axess Inc., a registered broker-dealer, will
receive compensation from JPMorgan based on transactions JPMorgan conducts
through the system. JPMorgan will make the securities available to its customers
through the Internet distributions, whether made through a proprietary or
third-party system, on the same terms as distributions made through other
channels.

Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time

to time, performed various investment or commercial banking, financial advisory
and lending services for us in the ordinary course of business for which they
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have received customary fees and expenses. Affiliates of each of the
underwriters are lenders under our bridge loan facility. Valero will pay a
portion of the net proceeds from this offering to these affiliates of the
underwriters when Valero repays the bridge loan facility. Under the Conduct
Rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD), special
considerations apply to a public offering of securities if more than 10% of the
net proceeds thereof will be paid to members or affiliates of members of the
NASD participating in the offering. Because Valero will pay more than 10% of the
aggregate proceeds from this offering to affiliates of the underwriters, this
offering is being conducted pursuant to Rule 2710(c) (8) of the NASD Conduct
Rules.

LEGAL MATTERS

Baker Botts L.L.P., Houston, Texas will pass on the validity of the notes
offered in this prospectus supplement. Davis Polk & Wardwell will pass upon some
legal matters for the underwriters in connection with this offering.

EXPERTS

The audited consolidated financial statements of Valero Energy Corporation
included in and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and
elsewhere in the registration statement have been audited by Arthur Andersen
LLP, independent public accountants, as indicated in their reports with respect
thereto, and are included herein in reliance upon the authority of said firm as
experts in accounting and auditing in giving said reports.

The audited consolidated financial statements of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock
Corporation included in and incorporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement and elsewhere in the registration statement have been audited by
Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, as indicated in their
reports with respect thereto, and are included herein in reliance upon the
authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing in giving said
reports.

On March 12, 2002, Valero's Board of Directors dismissed Arthur Andersen
LLP as the company's independent public accountants and appointed Ernst & Young
LLP as the company's independent public accountants for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2002.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Valero Energy Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Valero
Energy Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders'
equity, cash flows and comprehensive income for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Valero Energy Corporation
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States.

/s/ ~ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

San Antonio, Texas
March 5, 2002

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS, EXCEPT PAR VALUE)
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DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments...........ooueeeeeeenenn. S 269,437 S 14,596
Restricted cash. ...ttt it it ettt et ettt ie e 76,623 ——
Receivables, Net ...ttt ittt ettt e et eeeaeeaens 785, 605 585,892
528 ol s X == 1,453,106 539,882
Current deferred income tax assets......iuei i eennenn. —— 105,817
Income taxes receivable. ...ttt ittt eeetneennenn 132,226 ——
Prepaid expenses and other current assets................. 92,510 38,880
Assets held for Sale. ...ttt ittt ettt eeeenenaenens 1,303,637 ——
Total current assSet S . .. i i ii ittt ittt teeeneennenns 4,113,144 1,285,067
Property, plant and equipment, at cost..........ccuiiiiee... 8,197,841 3,481,117
Less accumulated depreciation.........iiiiiiiiiitennnnnnnns (937,386) (804,437)
Property, plant and equipment, net......... ..ot 7,260,455 2,676,680
(€7 Yo L2 P 2,210,473 -
Intangible assets, Net. ...ttt ittt ettt eeeeeennn 366,702 59,141
Deferred charges and other assets........cciiiiiiitiinnnen... 426,322 286,816

TOLAl @SS St ittt ittt et e ettt et e ettt

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt..... S 505,661 S 27,000
Payable to UDS shareholders........ii ittt iiiinneeeeennnnns 2,055,250 ——
Accounts payvable. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e 1,374,501 806,697
ACCIrUEA B XIS S v v e v e v vt oaee e e e s oeaeeeeeseeneeeeeeeeanns 413,902 104,473
Taxes other than iNCoOME LaAXES. .. i i ittt it ittt eeeeneeneeens 320,208 72,589
Current deferred income tax liabilities................... 60,724 -
Income taxes payvable. . ...t ittt ettt e - 28,233
Total current liabilities.......uiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn 4,730,246 1,038,992
Long-term debt, less current portion.............coeieiiee... 2,517,398 1,042,417
Capital lease 0bligations. . ...ttt eeenneneenns 287,849 -
Deferred income tax liabilities.......c.oiiiiiiiiiininennnnnn 1,388,123 406,634
Other long-term liabilities........iiiiiiiiiiineennnennnn 762,809 120,106
Commitments and contingencies
Company-obligated preferred securities of subsidiary
LB = = 372,500 172,500
Minority interest in consolidated partnership............... 115,608 -

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 300,000,000 and 150,000,000
shares authorized at 2001 and 2000, respectively; issued

50



Edgar Filing: VALERO ENERGY CORP/TX - Form 424B5

108,198,992 and 62,311,166 shares at 2001 and 2000,

TESPECEIVE LY i i ittt i it e e e e e e e e e e e e et e 1,082 623
Additional paid-in capital.......i ittt 3,468,550 1,249,127
Treasury stock, at cost; 4,001,683 and 1,472,698 shares at

2001 and 2000, respecChively...u.i it e i et eeneeeeeeeenns (149, 616) (44,261)
Retained earningsS. ...ttt ittt e teeeeeeeeeenaeens 864,421 321,566
Accumulated other comprehensive income.................... 18,126 -

Total stockholders' equUity.... ... 4,202,563 1,527,055
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity......... $14,377,096 $4,307,704

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
OPErating FTeVENUES . o v vttt ittt ettt ettt eeeeeeeennnaeeeens 514,988,339 $14,671,087 $7,961,168
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales and operating expenses................. 13,684,041 13,817,524 7,731,151
Selling and administrative expensesS..........ceeeuee... 165,215 130,506 68,463
Depreciation eXPEeNSe . @ittt ittt ittt et 137,740 112,078 89,525
Total costs and eXPEeNSEeS. .« v e ettt nneeeennn 13,986,996 14,060,108 7,889,139
Operating InCOmME. .. ittt it ittt e e e et e et ee et e e 1,001, 343 610,979 72,029
Other income (expense), Net .. ... iii ittt tteeeeeeeeannns (4,613) 282 3,587
Interest and debt expense:
0 oY o s o Y (99,142) (83,678) (61,182
Capitalized. vttt et e e e e e e e e 10,634 7,433 5,753
Distributions on preferred securities of subsidiary
LG = (13,369) (6,796) -
Income before income tax EXPeNnSe.......eeeeeeeennnneenens 894,853 528,220 20,187
TNCOME LAX EXPEIS e v v vt ettt taee e e e eeaeeeeeeeennaeeeens 331,300 189,100 5,900
I o o Yo (L $ 563,553 $ 339,120 $ 14,287
Earnings per share of common stock...........oiieeeo.n.. $ 9.28 $ 5.79 $ 0.25
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in
LhoUSaNdS) v ot vttt e i e e e e e e e e e 60,749 58,532 56,086
Earnings per share of common stock-—-assuming
[ B 6 e o $ 8.83 $ 5.60 $ 0.25
Weighted average common equivalent shares outstanding
(in thousands) v v vt it ittt ittt ettt e ieeeenn 63,803 60,525 56,758
Dividends per share of common stock.................... $ 0.34 $ 0.32 $ 0.32
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
F-4
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

EQUITY

NUMBER OF
COMMON
SHARES

ADDITIONAL
PAID-IN
CAPITAL

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31,
56,314,798 $1,112,726
Net income...........oove.... - - -
Dividends on common stock.... —— —— (17,931)
Shares repurchased and shares

issued in connection with

employee stock plans and

1,092,348

Dividends on common stock.... - -
Proceeds from common stock
offering,
Shares repurchased and shares
issued in connection with
employee stock plans and

(4,469)

5,980,000 60 166,693

62,311,166
Net income...........ooveo... - - -
Dividends on common stock.... - —— -
Issuance of common stock in
connection with UDS
Acquisition................
Fair value of replacement
stock options issued in
connection with UDS
Acquisition................ - -
Shares repurchased and shares
issued in connection with
employee stock plans and

45,887,826 459 2,064,034

120,075

RETAINED
EARNINGS
(ACCUMULATED

DEFICIT)

$(17,618)
14,287

(3,331)
339,120
(14,223)

321,566
563,553
(20, 698)

TREASURY
STOCK

(105, 355)
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-5

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net INCOME. t it ittt ettt e et e et e et et ettt ettt e $

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation EXPeNSe . @i ettt ittt et eeaneeeeeeens
Amortization of deferred charges and other,
Changes in current assets and current

=Y o i 0 e

Deferred income tax expense (benefit).............
Changes in deferred charges and credits and other,

Net cash provided by operating activities....
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditUres. .. ...ttt ii ittt tneenneeenns
Deferred turnaround and catalyst costs...............
UDS Acquisition, net of cash acquired................
Advance to UDS in connection with UDS Acquisition....
Purchase of inventories in connection with El Paso
2o 1 B =l
Huntway Acquisition,
Benicia Acquisition...... .ttt
Earn-out payments in connection with acquisitions....

Proceeds from disposition of property, plant and
15X L6 ) 0 o
Investment in joint ventures and other, net..........

563,553

137,740

114,614

(152,842)
270,700

(28,251)

(393,561
(142,423
(1,829,584
(703,057

(108,779)
(75,782)

(55,000)

7,699
(1,393)

Net cash used in investing activities........

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Financing required to fund cash portion of UDS
Acquisition, net of issuance costs................
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt,
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance costs.....
Long-term debt repayments.......c.coi ittt tinennnnnnnn
Proceeds from common stock offering,
Issuance of common stock in connection with employee
benefit Plans. ...ttt ittt ettt ettt
Proceeds from offering of preferred securities of
subsidiary trust,
Common stock dividends........iuiiiiiiiiiiiineennn
Purchase of treasury stock....... ...,

2,052,553
173,000
543,095
(18,500)

(20, 698)
(156,677)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing

$ 339,120

112,078
60,978

3,492
103,100

(17,466)

(194,889)
(107,495)

27,000
1,899,344
(1,647,000)

166,753

17,365

166,716
(18,692)
(64,292)

89,525
49,498

293,822
(9,400)

(100, 594)
(72,681)

(160,000)
922,794
(961,000)

(17,931)
(13,538)
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activities . vttt e e e e e e 2,651,207

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND TEMPORARY CASH

INVE S TMENT S . & it ittt et e et ettt ettt ettt aneneeenns 254,841
CASH AND TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS AT BEGINNING OF

0 S 14,596
CASH AND TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS AT END OF YEAR..... $ 269,437

547,194

(214,055)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-6

VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001
L= S 15's ) 11 $563,553
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax expense
(benefit) :
Net gain on derivative instruments designated and
qualifying as cash flow hedges:
Statement No. 133 transition adjustment, net of
income tax expense of $15,240.......0iiiiiinnee.. 28,304
Net loss arising during the period, net of income tax
benefit of $19,363. ...ttt e (35,960)
Net loss reclassified into income, net of income tax
benefit of $13,883 (including $679 related to the
Statement No. 133 transition adjustment, net of
tax O0f S44L) .t e 25,782
Net gains on cash flow hedges...... ... 18,126
Comprehensive 1NnCOmMe. . .ottt ittt ittt et ettt eaeeeaeenes $581,679

$339,120

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
F-7
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Valero Energy Corporation (Valero) is an independent refining and marketing
company. Prior to the acquisition of Ultramar Diamond Shamrock Corporation (UDS)
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on December 31, 2001, discussed further below, Valero owned and operated six
refineries in Texas, California, Louisiana and New Jersey with a combined
throughput capacity of over one million barrels per day. Valero produces
premium, environmentally clean products such as reformulated gasoline, gasoline
meeting specifications of the California Air Resources Board (CARB), low-sulfur
diesel and oxygenates. Valero also produces distillates, jet fuel and
petrochemicals. Valero markets its products through an extensive wholesale bulk
and rack marketing network, and through branded retail and other distributor
retail locations.

During 2001, Valero completed the following acquisitions:

- June l--Huntway Refining Company, which owned and operated two
California asphalt refineries (Huntway Acquisition);

- June 1--E1 Paso Corporation's Corpus Christi, Texas refinery and
related product logistics business (El1 Paso Acquisition);

- December 31--UDS, an independent refining and marketing company,
which owned and operated seven refineries and marketed its products
through approximately 4,500 company-operated and dealer-operated
convenience stores (UDS Acquisition).

These acquisitions, as described in Note 2, were accounted for using the
purchase method.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Valero and
subsidiaries in which Valero has a controlling interest. Investments in 50% or
less owned entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As used in this report, the term Valero may refer to Valero Energy
Corporation, one or more of its consolidated subsidiaries, or all of them taken
as a whole.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. On an ongoing basis, management reviews their estimates based on
currently available information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result
in revised estimates.

F-8
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)
CASH AND TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS
Valero's temporary cash investments are highly liquid, low-risk debt
instruments which have a maturity of three months or less when acquired. Cash
and temporary cash investments exclude cash that is not available to Valero due
to restrictions related to its use. Such amounts are segregated in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets in "Restricted cash."

INVENTORIES

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market. The cost of
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refinery feedstocks purchased for processing and produced products are
determined under the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. Valero uses the
dollar-value LIFO method with any increments valued based on average purchase
prices during the year. The cost of feedstocks and products purchased for resale
and the cost of materials, supplies and convenience store merchandise are
determined principally under the weighted-average cost method.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Additions to property, plant and equipment, including capitalized interest
and certain costs allocable to construction and property purchases, are recorded
at cost.

The costs of minor property units (or components of property units), net of
salvage value, retired or abandoned are charged or credited to accumulated
depreciation under the composite method of depreciation. Gains or losses on
sales or other dispositions of major units of property are recorded in income.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, including amortization of
assets acquired under capital leases, is recorded primarily on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the related facilities.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost (purchase price) over the fair wvalue
of the net assets of businesses acquired. In accordance with Statement No. 142
issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets," which will be effective for Valero's consolidated financial
statements commencing January 1, 2002, goodwill resulting from business
combinations completed after June 30, 2001 will not be amortized but instead
will be tested at least annually for impairment.

Intangible assets, which consist primarily of trade names, customer lists,
air emission credits, retail branding rights, royalties and licenses, and
franchise agreements, are recorded at cost and are amortized over their
estimated useful lives.

F-9
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS
Refinery Turnaround Costs

Refinery turnaround costs which are incurred in connection with planned
major maintenance activities at Valero's refineries are deferred when incurred
and amortized on a straight-line basis over that period of time estimated to
lapse until the next turnaround occurs. The frequency of refinery turnarounds
varies with each operating unit; the weighted average amortization period for
the $134.6 million balance of deferred turnaround costs as of December 31, 2001
is 3.4 years. Refinery turnaround costs include, among other things, the cost to
repair, restore, refurbish or replace refinery equipment such as vessels, tanks,
reactors, piping, rotating equipment, instrumentation, electrical equipment,
heat exchangers and fired heaters.

Fixed-Bed Catalyst Costs

Fixed-bed catalyst costs represent the cost of catalyst that is not
continually regenerated, but is instead changed out at periodic intervals when
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the quality of the catalyst has deteriorated to such an extent that the
effectiveness of that catalyst in performing its prescribed function has
deteriorated. Fixed-bed catalyst costs are deferred when incurred and amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the specific
catalyst, normally one to three years depending on the catalyst and the
operating unit in which it is utilized.

Equity Investments

Valero accounts for its interest in investments in 50% or less owned
entities using the equity method of accounting. Valero's equity investments
include:

- a 20% interest in the Javelina off-gas processing plant in Corpus
Christi, Texas,

o)

- a 50% interest in the Clear Lake, Texas methanol plant, and

- a 50% interest in the Skelly-Belvieu natural gas liquids pipeline, an
equity interest that was acquired as part of the UDS Acquisition.

Other Noncurrent Assets

Other noncurrent assets include prefunded benefit costs, debt issuance
costs and various other costs.

TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES

Taxes other than income taxes includes liabilities for ad valorem taxes,
excise taxes and payroll taxes.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Under
this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred amounts are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the year those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled.

F-10
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The functional currency of Valero's Canadian operations is the Canadian
dollar. The translation into U.S. dollars is performed for balance sheet
accounts using exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet date and for
revenue and expense accounts using the weighted-average exchange rate during the
year. Adjustments resulting from this translation will be reported in other
comprehensive income.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues are recorded when title to products sold has been transferred or
when services have been provided.

PRODUCT SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS
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Costs incurred for shipping and handling of products are included in "Cost
of sales and operating expenses" in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

IMPAIRMENT

Long-lived assets, including goodwill and intangible assets, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The evaluation of recoverability is
performed using undiscounted estimated net cash flows generated by the related
assets. If an asset is deemed to be impaired, the amount of impairment is
determined as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds discounted
estimated net cash flows. Effective January 1, 2002, Valero adopted Statement
No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," as
described below in New Accounting Pronouncements.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Liabilities for future remediation costs are recorded when environmental
assessments and/or remedial efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably
estimated. Other than for assessments, the timing and magnitude of these
accruals are generally based on the completion of investigations or other
studies or a commitment to a formal plan of action. Environmental liabilities
are based on best estimates of probable undiscounted future costs using
currently available technology and applying current regulations, as well as
Valero's own internal environmental policies. The environmental liabilities have
not been reduced by possible recoveries from third parties.

PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Effective January 1, 2001, Valero adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities," as amended. Statement No. 133 establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. It requires
that all derivative instruments be recorded in the balance sheet as either
assets or liabilities measured at their fair value. The Statement also requires
that changes in a derivative's fair value be recognized currently in income
unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Statement No. 133 allows
special hedge accounting for

F-11
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)

derivative instruments designated and qualifying as a fair value hedge or a cash
flow hedge. Statement No. 133 provides that the gain or loss on a derivative
instrument designated and qualifying as a fair value hedge, as well as the
offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, be
recognized currently in income in the same period. Statement No. 133 also
provides that the effective portion of the gain or loss on a derivative
instrument designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedge be reported outside
income as a component of other comprehensive income and be reclassified into
income in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecasted
transaction affects income. The remaining ineffective portion of the gain or
loss on the derivative instrument, if any, 1is recognized currently in income.
Statement No. 133 requires that a company formally document, designate, and
assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge accounting.

Statement No. 133 is not to be applied retroactively to financial
statements of prior periods. The adoption of this Statement has not resulted in
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any significant changes in Valero's business practices, including its hedging
and trading activities as described below; however, various systems
modifications have been required.

When Valero enters into a derivative instrument, the derivative is
designated as a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge, an economic hedge or a
trading instrument. For those derivatives designated as fair value or cash flow
hedges, Valero formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Valero accounts for its hedging relationships designated and qualifying as
fair value hedges or cash flow hedges in accordance with the requirements of
Statement No. 133. For Valero's economic hedging relationships (hedges not
designated as fair value or cash flow hedges) and for derivative commodity
instruments entered into by Valero for trading purposes, the derivative
instrument is recorded at fair value and the gain or loss on the derivative
instrument is recognized currently in income.

Valero discontinues hedge accounting prospectively if (i) it is determined
that the derivative is no longer highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk, (ii) the derivative expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or (iii) the derivative is no longer
designated as a hedging instrument. In any of these circumstances, Valero may
designate prospectively a new hedging relationship with a new hedging instrument
or, in the case of (i) or (iii), a different hedged item or hedged transaction.

When a cash flow hedge is discontinued, Valero continues to report the
related net derivative gain or loss in accumulated other comprehensive income
until the hedged forecasted transaction affects income, at which time the net
derivative gain or loss is reclassified into income. However, if it is probable
that the forecasted transaction will not occur either by the end of the
originally specified time period or within two months thereafter, Valero
reclassifies the related derivative gain or loss from accumulated other
comprehensive income into income immediately.

F-12
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of Valero's financial instruments approximate fair
value, except for certain long-term debt. See Note 10.

LEGAL FEES
Legal fees are expensed as incurred.
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Valero accounts for its employee stock compensation plans using the
intrinsic value method of accounting set forth in Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and related
interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options is measured as
the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of Valero's common stock at the
date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share of common stock is computed by dividing net income by
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the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the year. Earnings
per share of common stock-—assuming dilution reflects the potential dilution of
Valero's outstanding stock options and performance awards granted to employees

in connection with Valero's stock compensation plans.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS

In connection with the Benicia Acquisition described in Note 2, as a result
of ExxonMobil's requirement to withdraw the "Exxon" brand name from the San
Francisco Bay area and terminate the franchise right of dealers in this market
area to market Exxon-branded products, Valero introduced its own brand of retail
petroleum products in the San Francisco Bay area and entered into franchise
agreements with these dealers providing them the right to market products under
the new Valero brand. The activities under these franchise agreements consist of
petroleum product sales to these dealers through supply agreements that require
them to purchase petroleum products exclusively from Valero. Revenue from these
petroleum product sales is recorded when title transfers in accordance with
Valero's revenue recognition policy described above. Under the dealer supply
agreements, no initial franchise fees or continuing franchise fees are charged
and petroleum product sales are made at market prices. Recurring general,
selling and administrative costs related to these activities that are incurred
irrespective of the level of sales are expensed as incurred, while direct,
incremental costs incurred that are dependent on the level of sales are deferred
and recognized when the related revenue 1is recognized.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and losses
affecting stockholders' equity that, under United States generally accepted
accounting principles, are excluded from net income, such as

F-13
VALERO ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)
foreign currency translation adjustments, minimum pension liability adjustments,
unrealized gains and losses on certain investments in debt and equity
securities, and gains and losses related to certain derivative instruments.
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Effective July 1, 2001, Valero adopted Statement No. 141, "Business
Combinations." All business combinations in the scope of Statement No. 141 are
to be accounted for using the purchase method. The provisions of Statement No.
141 apply to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and apply
to all business combinations accounted for using the purchase method for which
the date of acquisition is July 1, 2001 or later. As described in Note 2, the
UDS Acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the 2001 presentation.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
FASB Statement No. 144

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144, "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." Statement No. 144, which
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supersedes Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of" and the accounting and
reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of
Operations——-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,"
establishes accounting standards for the impairment and disposal of long-lived
assets and criteria for determining when a long-lived asset is held for sale.
Statement No. 144 removes the requirement to allocate goodwill to long-lived
assets to be tested for impairment, requires that the depreciable life of a
long-lived asset to be abandoned be revised in accordance with APB Opinion No.
20, "Accounting Changes," provides that one accounting model be used for
long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale, whether previously held and used or
newly acquired, and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to
include more disposal transactions. Statement No. 144 will be effective for
financial statements beginning January 1, 2002, with earlier application
encouraged. Valero does not expect the adoption of this statement to have a
material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

FASB Statement No. 143

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143, "Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations." Statement No. 143 requires entities to record the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation when an existing law or
contract requires that the obligation be settled. The statement requires that
the amount recorded as a liability be capitalized by increasing the carrying
amount of the related long-lived asset. Subsequent to initial measurement, the
liability is accreted to the ultimate amount anticipated to be paid, and is also
adjusted for revisions to the timing or amount of estimated cash flows. The
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon
settlement of the liability, an entity either settles the

F-14
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (CONTINUED)

obligation for its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement.
Statement No. 143 will be effective for financial statements beginning January
1, 2003, with earlier application encouraged. Valero is currently evaluating the
impact on its consolidated financial statements of adopting this statement.

FASB Statement No. 142

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets." This statement, which supersedes APB Opinion No. 17,
"Intangible Assets," provides that goodwill and other intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives will not be amortized but instead will be tested at
least annually for impairment. Intangible assets that have finite useful lives
will continue to be amortized over their useful lives, but such lives will not
be limited to 40 years. Statement No. 142 provides specific guidance for testing
goodwill and other nonamortized intangible assets for impairment. Additionally,
the statement requires certain disclosures about goodwill and other intangible
assets subsequent to their acquisition, including changes in the carrying amount
of goodwill from period to period, the carrying amount of intangible assets by
major intangible asset class for those assets subject to amortization and for
those not subject to amortization, and the estimated intangible asset
amortization expense for the next five years. The provisions of this statement
must be applied in Valero's consolidated financial statements beginning January
1, 2002, except that any goodwill and other intangible assets acquired after
June 30, 2001 will be subject immediately to the amortization provisions of this
statement. Valero did not have goodwill prior to July 1, 2001 but did have
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finite-lived intangible assets that will continue to be amortized and are
subject to this statement beginning January 1, 2002. Goodwill and other
intangible assets acquired in connection with the UDS Acquisition will be
accounted for in accordance with the provisions of this statement.

2. ACQUISITIONS
ULTRAMAR DIAMOND SHAMROCK CORPORATION

On December 31, 2001, Valero completed its acquisition of UDS. Under the
terms of the merger agreement, each outstanding share of UDS common stock, with
limited exceptions, was converted into the right to receive cash, Valero common
stock, or a combination of cash and Valero common stock at the shareholder's
election but subject to proration. Based on the exchange election results,
shareholders electing Valero common stock received, for each share of UDS common
stock, approximately 0.9265 shares of Valero common stock and $16.32 in cash.
Shareholders electing cash and non-electing shareholders received $49.47 in cash
for each UDS share. The average closing price of Valero common stock for the
10-day measurement period specified in the merger agreement was $35.78. As a
result, Valero issued 45,887,826 shares of Valero common stock and paid $2.1
billion of cash to UDS shareholders.

UDS was an independent refiner and retailer of refin